NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

BOARD MEETING
Thursday, December 19, 2002
Zia Room - Library
1:30 p.m.

AGENDA

. Welcome

. Adoption of Agenda

. Approval of Minutes of November 21, 2002
. Correspondence

. President’s Report

. New Business

Monthly Expenditures Report

Monthly Revenue Report

01l and Gas Revenue Report

Schedule of Investments

Consideration of Board Policy Handbook

Consideration of Auction List

Consideration of Inventory Items

Consideration of Board Election Resolution

Personnel Consideration — Prof of Theatre/Scenic Designer/Technical Dir

bl e B R I

. Closure of Open Meeting
. Public Comments
Announcement of Next Meeting

Adjournment

Mr. Newman
Mr. Newman
Mr. Newman
Dr. McCleery
Dr. McCleery
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dan Hardin
Dr. McCleery
Dr. McCleery
Dr. McCleery
Dr. McCleery
Rich Fleming
Mr. Newman
Mr. Newman

Mr. Newman

Mr. Newman




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
BOARD MEETING
NOVEMBER 21, 2002

MINUTES

The New Mexico Junior College Board met on Thursday, November 21, 2002, beginning at 1:30
p-m. in the Zia Room of Pannell Library. The following members were present: Mr, Monty
Newman, Chairman; Ms. Patricia Chappelle; Mr. Larry Hanna; and Mrs, Yvonne Wiiliams. Not
present were Mr. Ferrel Caster and Mr. John Hice, Jr.

Mr. Newman called the meeting to order and welcomed those present.

Upon a motion by Mrs. Williams, seconded by Ms. Chappelle, the agenda was unanimously
adopted, as presented.

Upon a motion by Ms. Chappelle, seconded by Mrs. Williams, the board unanimously approved
the minutes of October 28 and October 30, 2002.

Under President’s Report, Bob Jackson introduced the Lady Cross Country Team and
reported they had placed 7th in the recent national championship.

Under New Business, Dan Hardin presented the October financial reports and with a motion
by Mrs. Williams, seconded by Ms. Chappelle, the board unanimously approved the expenditures
for October 2002.

Donna Richards presented Bid #929 - Welding Equipment and Supplies. The administration
recommended acceptance of the multiple award bid as follows: AirGas $7,828.08; EASB
$13,857.38; Lincoln $6,332; COB $1,877; and Streurs $3,335. Upon a motion by Mr. Hanna,
seconded by Ms. Chappelle, the board unanimously accepted the recommendation.

Ms. Richards presented the Emergency Purchase of Waste Water Lift Station Transfer Pumps.
The Business Office recommended the acceptance of the proposal by Odessa Pumps in the amount
of $31,500. Upon a motion by Mr. Hanna, seconded by Mrs. Williams, the board unanimously
accepted the recommendation.




Mr. Newan recommended Larry Hanna, John Hice, Jr., and Pat Chappelle serve on the board
selection committee. He also recommended they bring a recommendation to the January board
meeting for consideration. Upon a motion by Mrs. Williams, seconded by Ms. Chappelle, the
board unanimously approved the adhoc committee.

Dr. McCleery recommended the proposed redistricting plan A for the college. No objections have
been received for the proposal. Upon a motion by Mr. Hanna, seconded by Mrs. Williams, the
board unanimously adopted plan A as prepared by Research & Polling, Inc.

Dr. McCleery recommended a non-reoccurring compensation increase of $600 be awarded to each
full time employee in a separate check on Friday, December 13, 2002. He also recommended that
the increase not be eligible for the Supplemental Retirement Plan. After some discussion, Ms.
Chappelle recommended the increase be $650, Mrs. Williams seconded the motion, which passed
unanimously.

Under Personnel Considerations, Bill Kunko recommended Kiril Farkov for the webmaster
position with an annual salary of $32,000. Upon a motion by Ms. Chappelle, seconded by Mr.
Hanna, the board unanimously approved the employment of Mr. Farkov, effective December 9,
2002.

Dr. McCleery presented the Cooperative Purchase Agreement from SCT Software & Resource
Management Corporation for board consideration. Upon a motion by Mr. Hanna, seconded by
Mrs. Williams, the board unanimously approved the agreement. Dr. McCleery then presented the
joint purchasing contract for the purchase of administrative software. Upon a motion by Mr.
Hanna, seconded by Mrs. Chappelle, the board unanimously approved the contract.

Ms. Chappelle moved the board go into closed session for the discussion of limited personnel
matters under the provisions of section 10-15-1-H(2) of the New Mexico Statutes Annotated 1978.
Mr. Hanna seconded the motion. The roll call vote was as follows: Mr. Newman - yes; Mrs.
Williams - yes; Ms. Chappelle - yes; and Mr. Hanna - yes.

Upon re-convening in open meeting, Mr. Newman stated that the matters discussed in the closed
meeting were limited only to those specified in the motion for closure.

There will be a work session on December 17, 2002 at 3:00 p.m. and the next regular board
meeting was scheduled for December 19, 2002, beginning at 1:30 p.m. in the Zia Room of Pannell
Library.




Upon a motion by Ms. Chappelle, seconded by Mrs. Williams, the board meeting adjourned at
3:40 p.m.

CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

SECRETARY

Others present:

Richard Morris
Donna Richards
Cc Nelson

Tim Perry
Keith Hurley
Dan Hardin

Bill Kunko
Sharon Jenkins
Terry Halladay
Mickey Best
Regina Organ
Rich Fleming
Sam Oswald
Charley Carroll
Lisa Brown
Marilyn Jackson
Steve Davis
Robert Bensing
Pat Gorman
Richard Lloyd




|
II

I

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Vice President for Finance

= o
To: New Mexico Junior College Board Members

From: Dan Hardin

Date: December 12, 2002

RE: Expenditure and Revenue Reports for November

November is month five or 42% of the budget for the 2002/2003 fiscal year. The
expenditure report represents expenditure totals that include funds expended and
encumbered. The total year to date funds expended and/or encumbered through the
month of November is $12,317,182.00 of which $1,941,581.00 are encumbered funds.

The total current unrestricted fund expenditures for Instruction & General in November
are $5,209,459.00, which is on track at 42% of the projected budget. As we have
indicated in the past, areas such as Academic Support and Student Services are over
the projected budget at this time due to the early fall expenditures. The Internal Service
Departments receive a monthly allocation from the other areas for computer services.
The credit in Internal Services is a result of the allocations being more than the current
month expenditures. Expenditures in Auxiliary Enterprises are over projections, mainly
due to the cost of goods sold in the Bookstore. Bookstore cost of goods sold are higher
than projected, but revenues are also greater than projected.

Current restricted funds are over projections for this time of year as a result of student
aid distributed early in the fall. We will also see large distributions in the restricted
student aid in January as the students are awarded Pell grants and Direct loans at the
start of the spring semester. As the Financial Aid department makes the awards for
Pell grants and Direct loans the Business Office requests draw downs from the Federal
Department of Education. Grants are also a drawn down after the expense has
occurred. We typically incur the expense, submit a request for funds, and wait to be
reimbursed. The expense for the Restricted Grants is from the monthly expenditures to
operate and pay salaries for the grant programs.

In the Plant Funds we made a correction in how we disclosed the encumbered funds on
the Western Heritage Center project. Last month they were disclosed as Institutional,
but we changed that to GOB Funds. With that change, the November plant fund
expenditures occurred mainly in the State GOB funds. We encumbered funds for the
Western Heritage Center, the administrative software and the CHE funded IT server
enhancement and telecollege upgrade. The GOB expenditures require the college to




1]

|
I

|
|
|

expend the funds, then request a drawdown from the state or through the Commission
on Higher Education. Building Renewal and Replacement, BR&R, is an ongoing
process, with Charley Carroll moving those projects along.

Total expenditures through November were $12,317,183.00, or 42% of the projected
budget.

The revenue generated in November 2002 was $1,338,086.00. This mostly consists of
the monthly allocation from the state, the oil and gas income, Bookstore income, and
direct loans and grant draw downs of $216,790.00.

Qil and gas tax revenue for November was $274,752.00. We have received
$1,413,800.00 in oil and gas income from July through November, which is
$372,515.00 over the projected budget for the five month period. We have received
only a small fraction of the property tax income as of the end of November. We will get
a large check from the Lea County Treasurer for the mill levy on the property taxes in
January or February.

The investment report shows an ending balance of $6,575,000.00. We brought in
funds as we are expending for capital projects, and for cash flow to cover expenditures
that will have draw downs. Of the $6,575,000.00 in LGIP, $4,742,842.79 is in capital
projects, which is 72% of investments. The Business Office is looking into the
possibility of investing in U. S. Treasury Notes. The Treasury Notes will have a better
return than the LGIP.

On the investment report is a listing of the capital projects, We have completed the
Caster Activity Center HVAC project and the funds have been expended. There are
several other projects that are in progress, the Business Office has issued purchase
orders and encumbered the funds for these projects.

Speaking on behalf of all of the employees of New Mexico Junior College, we greatly

appreciate the one time compensation. We appreciate the Board for your time and
support of New Mexico Junior College. Thanks again and have a Merry Christmas.

This concludes the Financial Report for November 2002.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Expenditure Report

November 2002
42% of Year Completed
2001-02 2002-03
Year-to-Date Percentage Current Year-to-date Percentage
Final Expended or of Budget Original Expended or Expended or of Budget
Fund Budget Encumbered  Expended Budget Encumbered _ Encumbesed Expended
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General:
Instruction 5,980,600 1,972,176 33% 5,012,174 460,017 2,024,258 40%
Academic Support 1,021,222 584,683 57% 890,128 94,021 643,201 72%
Student Services 1,194,494 599,134 50% 1,002,233 153,231 663,401 66%
Institutional Support 2,461,574 1,002,760 41% 3,581,759 183,378 1,023,158 29%
Operation & Maintenance of Plant 1,943,012 634,049 33% 1,783,961 1_._39,458 855,441 48%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 12,600,902 4,792,802 38% 12,270,255 1,030,105 5,209,459 42%
Student Activities 165,817 55,792 34% 155,236 22,663 107,750 69%
Research 0 0 0% 0 [1] [+ ] 0%
Public Service 5,650 935 17% 1] 0 o 0%
Internal Service Departments 300,815 350,049 116% 710,422 (13,827) 336,560 47%
Student Ald 148,092 100,773 68% 281,479 2,377 103,423 37%
Auxillary Enterprises 1,266,820 993,102 78% 1,193,795 101,929 964,350 81%
Athletics 593,066 324,639 55% 562,053 36,314 305,362 54%
Total Current Unrestricted Fund 15,081,162 6,618,092 44% 15,173,240 1,179,561 7,026,904 46%
CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND
Grants 2,236,954 892,659 40% 2,347,254 139,828 1,082,438 46%
Student Aid 3,300,000 1,996,457 60% 3,964,907 145,393 2,200,511 55%
Total Current Restricted Fund 5,536,954 2,889,116 52% 6,312,161 285,221 3,282,949 52%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Outlay / Bldg. Renewal & Repl.
Anonymous Grant 250,000 0 0% 0 0 ] 0%
Projects from Institutional Funds 3,325,000 896,168 27% 5,944,312 {136,254) 979,550 16%
Projects from State GOB Funds 1,500,000 733,075 0% 1,212,900 640,652 818,891 68%
Projects from State STB Funds 143,891 143,891 100% 0 0 0 0%
Projects from Other State Funds 6,163 6,163 100% o 1] 1] 0%
Projects from StateBR& R 345,546 126,230 37% 327,399 51,244 177,907 54%
Projects from Auxiliary BR&R 0 [} 0% 19,147 3,180 30,982 162%
Subtotal - Capital and BR&R 5,570,600 1,905,527 34% 7,503,758 558,822 2,007,330 27%
Debst Service
Revenue Bonds 1,470,813 133,802 9% _o - ] _ 0 0%
Total Plant Funds 7,041,413 2,039,329 29% 7,503,758 558,822 2,007,330 27%
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 27,659,529 11,546,537 42% 28,989,159 2,023,604 12,317,183 42%

I = e e e L et T e —— - AR

rrn e



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Revenue Report

November 2002
42% of Year Completed
2001-02 2002-03
Percentage Percentage
Final Year-to-date  of Budget Original Current Month Year-to-date of Budget
Fund Budget Revenue Received Budget Revenue Revenue Recelved
CURRENT UNRESTRICTED FUND
Instruction and General:
Tuition and Fees 1,244,954 986,130 79% 1,356,355 7,499 701,098 52%
State Appropriations 7,494,100 3,376,825 45% 7,376,100 614,683 3,073,415 42%
Advalorem Taxes - Oll and Gas 2,874,085 1,648,368 57% 2,949,084 274,752 1,415,080 48%
Advalorem Taxes - Property 1,900,000 80,144 4% 1,800,000 6,396 68,284 4%
Interest Income 75,000 58,079 77% 50,000 102 8,012 16%
Other Revenues 294,400 122,190 42% 307,700 (1,490} 122,326 40%
Subtotal - Instruction & General 13,882,539 6,271,736 45% 13,839,239 901,942 5,388,215 39%
Student Activities 43,400 95,964 221% 43,400 21 26,888 62%
Public Service 0 0 0% 0 0 0 0%
Intemnal Service Departments 14,000 8,357 60% 10,000 1,113 7,720 77%
Auxiliary Enterprises 1,528,300 1,163,148 76% 1,663,000 18,922 971,793 58%
Athletics 35,100 14,338 41% 35,400 3,061 14,561 41%
Total Current Unrestricted 15,503,339 7,553,543 49% 15,591,039 925,129 6,409,177 41%
CURRENT RESTRICTED FUND
Grants 2,236,954 325,357 15% 2,347,254 164,564 369,286 16%
Student Aid 3,336,485 1,834,249 55% 3,716,407 52,226 1,959,014 53%
Total Current Restricted 5,573,439 2,159,606 39% 6,063,661 216,790 2,328,300 38%
PLANT FUNDS
Capital Outlay / Bidg. Renewal & Repl,
Anonymous Grant 250,000 24,732 10%
Projects from State GOB Funds 1,500,000 535,850 36% 1,212,500 196,147 196,147 16%
Projects from State STB Funds 143,891 143,891 100% 0 [+ 0 0%
Projects from Other State Funds 6,163 6,163 100% 0 [+] 0 0%
Interest Income 50,000 51,658 103% 105,700 20 48,490 46%
Subtotal - Capital & BR&R 1,700,054 762,294 45% 1,318,600 196,167 244,637 19%
Debt Service
Interest Income 73,164 22,266 30% 0 0 1] 0%
Total Plant Funds 1,773,218 784,560 44% 1,318,600 196,167 244,637 19%
GRAND TOTAL REVENUES 22,849,996 10,497,709 46% 22,973,300 1,338,086 8,982,114 39%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Oil and Gas Revenue Report

November 2002
42% of Year Completed
OIL GAS COMBINED
2002-03 Variance
Month of Price Lea County Price Lea County Monthly Original  Over (Under)
Sales Distribution per BBL BBLs sold | per MCF MCF sold Revenue Budget Budget
May July $25.54 3,213428 | $2.93 17,624,734 | 288,681 208,257 80,424
June  August 1 $22.24 3,318,541 | $2.13 19,075,363 | 298,995 208,257 90,738 |
July September $25.14 3,177,774 | %2.68 18,025,220 253,965 208,257 45,708
August __October $25.38 3,265,406 $2.98 18,326,173 297,407 208,257 89,150
September November | %26.85 3,146,407 $2.91 18,237,192 | 274,752 208,257 = 66495
October December 208,257 (208,257)
November January = 208,257 (208,257)
December  February 208,257 (208,257}
January March 208,257 (208,257)
February  April : 208,257 (208,257)
March May ) : 1 208,257 (208,257)
April June 208,257 {208,257)

Y.T.D. Production Tax Revenue 1,413,800 2,499,000 (1,085,284)

Y.T.D. Equipment Tax Revenue 1,280 450,000 (448,720)

Total Year-to-Date Oil & Gas and Equipment Tax Revenue 1,415,080 2,949,000 {1,534,004)

Source: New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department

In order to stabilize the budgetary process for the 2002-03 fiscal year, oil and gas revenues were
budgeted at a long-term historical average of $16.00 per bbl for oil and $2.50 per mcf for gas. Itis
recognized that actual collections will exceed this conservative historical average. Therefore,
collections for the 2002-03 year that exceed this budgeted amount will be considered for transfer
to the college's capital fund at the end of the year.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Schedule of Investments

November 2002
42% of Year Completed
Period of
Amount Date Maturity Investment Account Interest Interest
Financlal Institution Invested Invested Date {Days) Number Rate Eamed
State of New Mexico
Local Government Investment Pool 6,575,000 N/A N/A N/A 7102-1348 1.95% 10,693
Total investments 5,575,000 10,693
Summary of Current Month’s Activity Capltal Projects 11/30/ ZOOZJ
Technology Upgrade 84,629.88
Beginning amount 7,325,000 Woridforce Training Center 1,191,750.14
High Tech Start Up 272,911.67
Plus: deposits 0 Docutech 150,000.00
Vehicles 100,000.00
Less: withdrawals (750,000) CISCO Networking Equipment 5,481.43
Western Heritage Center 500,000.00
Capital Projects 4,742,843“ Drawings and Master Plan 95,294.00
Baseball Field 268,707.50|
Reserves Invested 1,832,157 Rodeo Arena 18,482.55
Dormitory Landscape 46,012.37
Total LGIP Investment 6,575,000 Caster Activity Center HVAC 0.00
Circle Drive 231,028.54
Dorm Construction 1,600,000.00
Lea County Beautification 37,500.00
Parking Lot Seal Coating 50,000.00
Dorm Recreation Area 68,864.23
BR&R Carrvover 22,180.48
Total 4,742,842.79

KOTE: Capital projects total does not include sncumbered funds




SHOOBRIDGE LAW FIrM, P.C.

WILLIAM G. W. SHOOBRIDGE 701 NORTH GRIMES STREET (505) 397-2496
HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240 FAX. (505) 3972497
DIANNA L.LUCE E-MAIL: shoolaw@aol.com

FAXED & MAILED

December 5, 2002

Dr. Steve McCleery

New Mexico Junior College
5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, New Mexico 88240

Re:

Draft of New Mexico Junior College Policy Manual

Dear Dr. McCleery:

I have reviewed the 11/2002 draft of the New Mexico Junior College Board Policy Manual which
was revised by Richard Lloyd and which utilized some of John Shepherd’s previous efforts. 1 am
impressed by the draft documents thoroughness. The proposed Board Policy Manual is also
consistent with the State Auditor’s recommendations and agreement of the college to establish
policies arising out of the State Auditors 1997 report. I have enclosed copies of the pages wherein
I suggest changes for your review. I make the following minor suggestions:

1.
2!

*

SEROR00 8=

Policy No. 200, III, F. The word “scam” should be “scan.”

Policy No. 303. The word “shall” should be “will.” The courts have determined that
“shall” is mandatory language, whereas “will” is permissive language. Since the
regular meeting date may change, I suggest using the permissive “will.”

Policy No. 303, paragraph B 4. 1 suggest adding at the end of the next to last
sentence, “or as provided by law.” In the last sentence after the word “acquisition”
and before the word “may”, I would add “or litigation settlement negotiations.”
Policy No. 400, page 2 of 3 paragraph D, the word “development” is improperty
spaced.

Policy No. 500, paragraph II A, after the word “including” add “but not limited to”
and add at the end of the sentence, “as well as, the Constitutions of the United States
and the State of New Mexico.”

Policy No. 502, paragraph VI A, should be omitted. I think the reference to the
Employee Handbook is sufficient and the additional language could be confusing.
Policy No. 507, paragraph II. I recommend changing the word “court” to ‘legally.”
Policy No. 600, paragraph A. The word “offered” is improperly spaced.

Policy No. 600, paragraph XII. The last sentence needs a main verb such as “obtain.”
Policy No. 700, paragraph III. “Desired” is improperly spaced.




December 5, 2002
Page 2.

11.  Policy No. 703, paragraph C 1. There is an improper space in the first sentence
between the words “come” and “to.”

12.  Policy No. 703, paragraph B, page 5 of 7. The statute is not properly cited. It should
read “(Section 21-1B-1 et seq, NMSA, 1978)”

13.  Policy No. 704, paragraph 1. In the last sentence, “related” is improperly spaced.

14.  Policy No. 704, page 3 of 3. The words “learning, personal, beliefs and vaiue” in the
first sentence are improperly spaced. In the fourth sentence, I recommend removing
the phase “that accur on or off campus.” There is a potential for litigation whenever
the college attempts to discipline an individual for off campus actions.

15.  Policy No. 705. The Policy Topic should read “Complaint”, not “Complain.”

16.  Policy No. 804, paragraph I. The word “normal” should be “normally.”

17.  Policy No. 806, paragraph C 1. There is an improper space between the words “for”
a,.t]d €, Y

18. Pohcy No. 900, paragraph D. 2. b. There are three improper spaces in the first
sentence.

19.  Policy No. 901, paragraph D. There is an improper space in the first sentence
between the words “harassing” and “in.”

20.  Policy Nos. 600, 703 and page 6 of 7 of 703, the words “important”, “credit” and
“advisors” are improperly spaced.

As you can see, my substantive suggestions were very few. I applaud the effort and results of this
project. This Policy Manual will be a convenient guide for all board members. Please let me know
if you have any further questions.

Very truly yours

jm’ d&m%m

“WILLIAM G. W. SHOOB

fyi
Enclosures
cc: Mr. Richard Lloyd (w/enc)




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 200

Page 10f2

[I1. New Mexico Junior College Vision Statements

A,

:—l

New Mexico Junior College will provide the highest quality education
and community services by maintaining an educational environment
where continuous assessment ensures student learning.

New Mexico Junior College will strive to be a premier comprehensive
community college with a focus on quality, economic development, and
collaborative agreements.

New Mexico College will do everything possible to enhance its image
within the service area.

. New Mexico Junior College will maintain a comprehensive students

services package including recruitment and retention plan that will ensure
a yearly 1%-2% FTE growth in enroilment.

New Mexico Junior College shall provide a positive working
environment for employees. the envirohiaent shall promote teamwork
and foster trust and communication among ‘the staff.

New Mexico Junior Ctﬁle_ge will continually e environment
locally, regionally and nationally:to-provide a S'ggtegic Plan that will
serve the needs of constituents.

New Mexico Junior College \a-ril_l'rcontinu“e;gg provide modern and clean
facilities, as well as plan for maintaining the campus buildings for future
growth.

seat

. New Mexico Junior College will provide a safe and secure environment

for students, staff and-patrons.

New Mexico Junior College.will explore avenues to improve the
institution’s financial position and resource base.

New Mexico Junior College will strive to provide quality equipment.
New Mexico Junior College will develop, implement and maintain an
integrated'marketing plan that enhances its image and promotes the
vision and value of the college.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 303

Page 1 of 7

SECTION: New Mexico Junior College Board
POLICY TOPIC: Board Meetings

1. Introduction

To comply with the Open Meetings Act, Sections 10-15-1 to 10-15-4, NMSA
1978, the following definitions and procedures are detailed so the conduct of
all College Board business is in compliance with the spirit of the law:

0. Meetings

A

Definition: Meetings are defined “as any verbal exchange among a
quorum of board members attempting to arrive at a decision on any,public
business or public policy relating to the College over which the Board has
supervision or control.

Types of meetings:
1. Regular Meetings: ‘According to state statute, meetings of the Board

shall be held not less than gquarterly each calendar year. Special
meetings shall be held 'upon call of the Chairperson of the Board or a
majority-of the Board. In a meeting df%e New Mexico Junior College
Boatd, a motion was adopted that regular meetings of the Board shall
be held on a monthly basis: This exceeds what is required by law but
is'deemed necessary to accomplish college business in an orderly and
timely,_manaer. The regular 'meeting be held on the third
Thursday of every monfli"at 1:30 p.m. in the New Mexico Junior
College Board Room (Zia Room) Hobbs, New Mexico. The date or
place of a regular meeting may be changed by action of the Board at
any previous meeting. Every board member shall be notified either by
letter or personally by distribution of the minutes carrying a record of
the change or at any other time by the Chairperson of the Board after
timely notice to all members and with the consent of a majority of
membérs. If the date or place of any regular meeting is changed, the
publi‘gr shall be informed of the change by notice as required by law.

. Special Meetings: Special meetings to conduct college business shall

be called by the Chairperson of the Board, by a majority of the
members of the Board or by the President with approval of the Board
Chairperson.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 303 Page 4 of 7

Iv.

Public Access

A. Meetings Open to the Public: All meetings at which the Board plans to
formulate policy, discuss college business or take any action within the
authority or delegated authority of the Board shall be open to the public at
all times except as otherwise provided in the constitution of the state of
New Mexico or the provisions of the Open Meefings Act.

B. Meetings Closed to the Public: To close a meeting or to call an executive
session at which the general public shall'not*be entitled fo.be present for
purposes set out in the Open Meetings Act, the following conditions shall
be met and procedures followed:

1. The Board shall first convene in a public epen meeting and during that
meeting; the Chairperson shall publicly announce that a closed or
executive meeting or session shall*be held. A motion to close the
meeting shall be made and approved by a'roll call majority vote of a
quorum of the Board. The.motion shall“include a statement of the
subject to be discussed which gives the Board authority to close the
meeting. The vote on tﬁaé motion sk% be recorded as required by law.

2. If a closed meeting is called>when the,Board is not in open meeting,
public notice appropriate ander the circumstance shall be given. The
notice shall include a statement of the purpose of the anticipated
closed meeting along with the identification of the section or sections
under Ee statute -authorizing the holding of such closed or executive
session. :

3.Closed meetings according to the above requirements shall be called
and voting shall take place in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.

4. Whenever any Qeliberation or any portion of a meeting is closed to the
public, no final action, decision or vote with regard to any matter
considered in the closed meeting shall be made except in a meeting
which is open to the public., Board action in matters of property
acquisiﬁo?\ may be considered ik closed session.

f

f H‘-,j{w@ b_j
-T: YA oN" . T /Or

errlcrc-n

,.,,e,-_-‘,3~|-' sHpeg

A

%




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 400 Page2of3

C. To manage New Mexico Junior College in conformity with the policies of
the Board, the Commission on Higher Education, the laws of the state of
New Mexico and the laws of the United States of America;

D. To provide leadership that allows the college’s philosophy to be reflected
in ¢ wriculurd d evelopmeﬁ?\lﬁs includes developing and presenting the
board recommended policies and cooperating with the policy-making
duties and responsibilities of the Board,

E. To assign specific administrative functions to be performed by members
of the administrative staff;

F. To recommend to the Board ‘the ‘employment and/or termination of all
employees;

G. To route all communications from the Board to members of the staff
through the President and receive communications from the college
employees to the Board through the President;

H. To work with the various ,aﬂrnhﬁstfati_ve heads in the continuous
evaluation and improvement_ of the administrative, supervisory and
instrictional techniques and procedures;

1. To attend all meetings-of the Board unless excused by the Board;

J. Toreport to the Board from time fo time, at his/her discretion or upon the
request_of, the Board, on the educational and financial affairs of the
community college;

K. To prepare the agenda for meetings of the Board;
L. Tosecure,cumulative factual data needed by the Board, the administration
and prof ssional and support/maintenance staff employees in planning for

the short-tenm and long-range needs of the community college;

M. To prepare the annual CHE and institutional budget with the assistance of
the appropriate community college officials and personnel;




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 500 Page 1 of 3
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Requirements and Employment

1L

Quality of Emplovees

New Mexico Junior College shall be committed to employing and retaining
highly qualified individuals who are trained and skilled in‘the area of their
appointed responsibility, who understand and support the basic characteristics
of community college concepts, who understand the demographics of its
service area, and who show a willingness to work 'in harmony and
cooperation with others toward accomplishing the institutional mission (see

Employee Handbook).

Qualifications for Employment, Promotions or Transfers

A.

Equal Opportunity
A,

Employment, promotions or transfers shall be based on qualifications,
ability and past performances.

New Mexico Junior College prefers.to promote employees within the
organization to more responsible positions..In employment, promotional
or transfer..decisions, the College shall consider such factors as
organizational needs, aspirations and qualifications of individuals and
availability of other job candidates.

New Mexico Junior College shall comply with the existing fedgvﬁéi

state laws and regulations in its personnel actions, including the Civil

Rights Act of 1964 and 1990; Executive Order 11246; Section 504 of

the 1973 Rehabilitation Act; the Age Discrimination Act of 1967; the

Americans with Disability Act of 1990; and the Vietnam Era Veteran's

Readjustment Act of 1974, where applicable, @ s> wweil &%, the

Bonste \4*.0\4_‘ D'F, the Ma’red STuten & The
New Mexico Junior College shall not discriminate in its educational and

employment policies and procedures with regard to race, color, religion,

sex, national origin, age, disability or veteran status.

ST

stute

ot

Me v

1
Sy e -




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 502 Page 3 of 3

C. When the President determines that a reduction in force or involuntary
transfer is necessary, such action shall be based upon the needs of the
College, performance of the individual, and the qualifications and
seniority of the employee. An analysis of the acquired knowledge,
demonstrated skills, and versatility of the employees:shall be compared to
the work to be done and the available funding.

VI. Notice of Reduction in Force

The New Mexico Junior College Board shall determine the course(s) of
action necessary to ensure the college’s ability to meet its fiscal obligations.
Economic conditions at the College may require a reduction in salary, a
reduction in workforce or both. Should the Board determine a reduction in
workforce is necessary, the notification deadlines for'professional employees
as set forth in the “Procedure for Non-Renewal of Annual Contracts” section
of the Employee Handbook shall be set aside.

.

\A. Should an employee’s contract not’be renewed, the President shall give a \
written notification, no later.than December 15.<This notification shall be '

delivered inyperson by the Rresident or sent by certified mail to the last I 71

__known address of the employee.

VI.  Grievances/Appeal Procedures

All employees affected by .a reduction in force may appeal the decision
through the employee appeal procedures for termination as outlined in the
Employee Handbook.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 507 Page 1 of 1
SECTION: Personnel

POLICY TOPIC: Employee Records

I.  Responsibility for Employee Records

The Human Resources Director is designated as the custodian for personnel
records of the faculty and staff employees and the records of applicants
seeking employment at the College.

[I. Inspection Policy

Any authorized person who wishes to inspect the contents of‘a personnel file
or applicant file shall be permitted to“do so, butis limited to information that
does not includerotected material.

\eeye
IV.Release of Information "t

Except as required for use i)'xgl]:_le:_ President in the EQ%%lj,ion of official duties,
the custodian for records shall'rclease personnel file Contents only upon
written authorization from the%mplo;-_r.ee affected.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 600 Page 2 of 5

V.

VL

VIL

VIIL

Cooperative Education

The objective of the cooperative education program at the College shall
provide training in specific areas for students for college credit, especially
when equivalent training is not normally available in the student's program.
Cooperative education shall also provide students with supervised real work
experience that shall be advantageous when attempting to secure employment
upon graduation.

Articulated High School Program

New Mexico Junior College is committed to ‘a close working relationship
with the public secondary schools in its area.. Among the cooperative
programs established is the Area Vocational High School program where high
school students are trained in various occupational programs in the same
facilities and share equipment with their post-secondary counterparts. A
student who successfully completes classes in the.area vocational school
receives credit for one or more courses when he/she enrolls in the College.
New Mexico Junior College has established .a 2+2 articulated program in
which high school students receive college credit for their secondary classes

in selected¢programs:

Basic‘Skill Development

To support the open door policy and to provide opportunities for those
citizens not,able to complete Hx‘th school, the College offers an Adult Basic
Education (ABE) program culminating in the award of a General Education
Development (GED) diploma. Classes in English as a Second Language are
conducted at sites throughout the county.

Continuing Education and Educational Access Programs and Services

In keeping with its mission of educational access, New Mexico Junior
College’ offers the following programs and services. The Board
acknowledges these programs and services a m o the e ducational
program and supports their continued development.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 600 Page 3 of 5

X.

A. Instructional Qutreach: Instruction in both credit and non-credit programs
ar€o fferedat v arious p ublic s chools and o ther facilities throughout the
service area. The College also enters into cooperative agreements with
community agencies and organizations to offer skill-training opportunities
on site.

B. Flexible Scheduling: New Mexico Junior College offers a variety of
courses during the evening hours and on weekends. Self-paced instruction
is also available in many programs. The implementation of the open-entry
open-exit concept is also being supported.

C. Telecommunications: Instructional televisien (ITV) and other means of
electronic delivery are effective 'means  of extending educational
opportunity to citizens who otherwise. might not avail themselves of it or
who prefer an individual approach to leaming. The College shall continue
to develop means to implement these programs.

D. Brokering of Educational. Services: NMIJC is committed to distance
education through brokering and coordination ‘of educational programs,
activities and services in its region.

Instructional Support Services

New Mexico -Junior Cellege offers extensive support services for its
instructional ceurses and programs to include learning resources, tutoring,
counseling and guidance, career advisement and assessment and placement.

Small Business Development Center (SBDC)

The Small Business Development Center provides access to a wide range of
business services for the would-be entrepreneur. The primary service is in the
area of counseling. One-on-one counseling services are provided to each
client. These sessions are held in strict confidence and are used to define
problems, set goals and objectives, to identify options and to plan for the
future. In addition, the SBDC offers training activities designed to meet the
needs of the local community. Such training may include short workshops on
timely topics or semester-long, credit courses. Finally, the third basic service
is resources and referrals. The Center has staff and equipment accessible to
the client and is part of a state-wide network of centers. Any person living in
Lea County or considering establishing a business in Lea County can use the
services of the NMJC Small Business Development Center.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 600 Page 5of 5

XIL

X111

XIV.

Student Academic Load

The normal load for a full-time college student, who plans to graduate in two
(2) years, (without attending summer school) is sixteen hours per semester.
However, in order for a student to maintain full-time status, he/she shall
enroll in, and complete a minimum of twelve (12) semester hours. An
overload is more than eighteen (18) credit hours per semester. Students may
up to 7 credit hours each summer session. (See Course Catalog)

Attendance

Attendance shall be required at every session af each course for which the
student is enrolled. When unavoidable circumstances make attendance
impossible, students shall provide a satisfactory explanation of their absences
to their instructors. College- sponsored activities are considered excused
absences and instructors shail be notified of the students who will be absent
from class. Students having absences due to college sponsored activities shall
be permitted to make up work. It shall'be the responsibility of the student to
make arrangements with the affected classes/instructors to take care of the
required work;-however, arrangements for make-ups shall be made within a
reasonablesfimesframe, usually within one week of the absence. Regarding
make-up‘work, absences due to late registration are considered the same as
regulaf absences.

@raduation Requ_ire_:men'ts

A. Graduation requirements represent the firm commitment to general
education principles that are designed to develop the potential of each
student, broaden the outlook and contribute to the realization of the well-
balanced whole person. Upon completion of graduation requirements,
New Mexico Junior College awards the following degrees: Associate in
Arts; Associate in Science and Associate in Applied Science to students
who'complete a prescribed program.

B. Developmental study courses shall not be used to satisfy graduation
requirements; however, developmental study courses required for some
students shall become a part of their degree plan.

veebh




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 700 Page 2 of 2

2. Release of Student Information: New Mexico Junior College does not
publish a student directory for general distribution. Release of student
information, schedules and related data shall be governed by the
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 as amended. Each
student shall have the right to review personal records, to seek
correction of information contained in those records and to have
access to records limited. Student records shallsbe kept in the Office of
Admissions and Records and shall be confidential to the student,
advisor and those faculty and staff employees authorized access to the
files to perform their jobs.

F. Assessment: The student services staff shall,be qualified and equipped to
provide testing services for a variety of the student's needs from assistance
with career planning to course placement. These services shall be
encouraged for the student and shall assist the faculty employee or
counselor in the academic.advisement of the student. This shall ultimately
result in the student ‘experiencing a more. positive and successful
educational program.

M.  Student Activities:

A. Philosophy: The College shall be committed to the concept of providing
vifll %%:-gcun'icular activities for students. Qualified staff employees shall
be employed to/develep and to coordinate programs and activities which
shall enhance individual leadership development promot ocial
interaction and provide social and recreational activities.

B. Student Organizations: Impetus for the formation of new clubs at the
College is expected'to come from students. As a pre-requisite to operation
on campus, all clubs shall be recognized by the College and shall agree to
abide by regulations of the Board and club rules issued by the
administration. No club shall be established or allowed to operate which
disctiminates against employees or students in violation of state or federal
law./Student organizations shall be approved annually by the Vice
President for Student Services.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 703 Page 2 of 7

[I.  Altemative Methods of Eaming Credit

A. Advanced Placement (AP)

Students who have completed college-level courses in secondary schools and
have taken the Advanced Placement (AP) examinations of the College Board
with resulting composite scores of 3, 4, or 5 ma&peﬁtion for college credit and
advanced placement. Such credit will be treatéd as transfer credit without a
grade, will count toward graduation, and may_ be used in fulfilling specific
curriculum requirements. Students who have taken and passed examinations for
Advanced Placement courses, other than those listed in the’NMJC Catalog,
should meet with a counselor about credit for those courses. Students may earn
a maximum of 52 credits for succe'ssﬁ::!',xper_formame on AP examinations. The
NMIC courses and the credit hours which willbe given for AP scores obtained
in the AP subject area indicated in the NMJC. Catalog.

B. College Level Examination Program (CLEP)

NMIC recognizes and honors ‘prior learning by accepting a wide range of
subject area CoHege-Level Examipation Program (CLEP) tests, which measure
a student’s mastery of college-level, introductory course content in a wide
range’ of \disciplines.  Transfer student§ can earn credit through prior CLEP
exams if their scores meet. these credit-granting standards. or CLEP
examinations will-be treated as credit without a grade, will count toward
graduation;and may be used in fulfilling specific curriculum requirements. We
grant a maximum ‘of .52+ credits for successful performance on CLEP
examinations. The NMIC Catalog will provide details of scores required on
each specific ‘subject 4rea, scores required, and credit hours given for each
subject area.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 703

C. Credit for Prior Learning Policy

1. Law Enforcement/Corrections (Criminal Just

Page 3 of 7

New Mexico Junior College recogpizes that New Mexico police officers
and corrections officers come .~ to us with a firm ‘grounding in their
individual disciplines. We recognize and honor their prior learning by
awarding college credit for a wide variety of learning experiences, both
classroom and practical experience. In an effort to assist officers who want
to further their educational experiences, NMJC is willing to award college
credit for successful completion «0f both a certified law enforcement
academy and/or corrections academy. Such'credit will be treated as credit
without a grade, will count toward graduation, and may be used in fulfilling
specific curriculum requirements. Credit will be awarded as indicated in the
NMIJC Catalog.

2. Automotive Technology/ASE €ertification

This policy is to be utilized in the implemeritation of a non-traditional

approach_to-a Certificate and/or Associate in Applied Science Degree in

Automofive Technology. NMIC’s goal is to allow currently working

techricians, whe have up-to-date knowledge and skills, the opportunity to

eafn a Certificate or Associate in Applied Science Degree while employed.

The following conditions.must be:met to receive credit in this area:

a’= ASE certification(s) for the applicant must be current.

b. Official ASE transcript(s) must be received by the Registrar’s office at
NMIC.

c. The applicant must present the NMIC AT instructor a letter, on official
letter head (if dvailable), from their employer indicating the student’s
length of employment, the type(s) of work performed, and the
applicant’s ability to perform the required work.

d'. An intérview with the AT instructor will be required of all students who
choose to utilize this option. The AT instructor will make the final
decision as to the course(s) for which the student will receive
substitution/credit. .

e. Upon completion of the interview with the AT faculty and review of the
letter from the employer, the student may be given credit for none, one,
or more of the following cooperative work experience courses: AT114,
AT114B, and AT212.

Upon verification, based on the official ASE transcript received by the
Registrar’s Office the ASE certifications are current; the student may receive
credit for AT courses as outlined in the NMJC Catalog.

A




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No.

B.

\
1 o
e \ /\Q
X \e‘
.o ’
L) \QJ K C
(.J
W

703 Page 5 of 7
Transfer Among New Mexico Higher Education Institutions

To facilitate transfer of students and course credits among New Mexico’s
colleges and universities, the state’s public institutions of higher education are
required to accept in transfer courses taken within approved modules of lower-
division course work and apply them toward degree requirements. Several
transfer guides have been developed through collaboration of New Mexico’s
public post-secondary institutions, consistent with requirements of state law
(21-1B, NMSA 1978). Students enrolling for first-year or second-year study at a
New Mexico institution and wishing to prepare for possible transfer into a
degree program at another institution are advised to take these courses during
their freshman and sophomore years.

. Student Responsibility

New Mexico’s colleges andruniversities have collaborated to produce guides to
assist students who plan to transfer before completing a program of study.
Course modules are designedito help students select courses carefully so that
they may transfer with little'of no/loss of credit. However, planning for
effective transfer. with maximum’ efficiency is ultimately the student’s
responsibilify. Responsible transfer planning includes early and regular
consultation with the intended degree-granting institution to assure that all pre-
transfér coursework will meet the requirements of the desired degree.

. Tranisferable Lower-Division:General Education Common Core

Students enrolling for first-year study who have not yet selected either an
academic focusyor the ‘institution where they wish to graduate are advised to
take courses during their freshman year outlined in the Lower Division General
education Common Core. For students enrolled at any public institution in New
ico, the following courses are guaranteed to transfer to any other New

Mexico »public college or university, and apply toward associate and
baccalaureate degree program requirements. Students should consult advisors
at their current institutions regarding which specific courses fit these categories.
Students preparing for careers in engineering, health sciences, or other
profession-related fields are advised that some of this course work may not
transfer toward general education requirements but in most cases will apply
toward elective requirements.

Area 1: Communication select 9 hours

e College-Level English Composition 3-4 hrs.

e College-Level Writing (a second course building on the above) 3 hrs.

e Oral Communication ......... 3 hrs.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 703

Area II: Mathematics select 3 hours

Page6of 7

e College Algebra ................. 3 hus.
e Calculus ...ccooceevvcmrcviiniinnnn 3 hrs.
e Other College-Level Mathematics 3 hrs.

Area III: Laboratory Science select 8 hours

General Biology, with laboratory 4-8:hrs.
General Chemistry, with laboratory 4-8 hrs.
General Physics, with laboratory 4-8 hrs.

Geology/Earth Science, with laboratory4-8 hrs.

e & & o @

Astronomy, with laboratory 4-8 hrs.

Area IV: Social/Behavioral Scien‘cc:s select 6-9.hours

Introductory Political Science 3 hrs.
Introductory Psychology:... 3 hrs.
Introductory Sociology ......3 hrs.
Introductory Anthropology 3 hrs.

Economics (macro or micro economics) 3 hrs.

Area ¥:-Humanities and Fine Arts select/6-9 semester hours

Introductory. History Survey3 hrs.
Introductory Philosophy .... 3 hrs:

e & 0 o

or Aesthetics of the ‘Arts or Literature
Total to'be selected 35 semester hours

E. Lower-Division 64-hour Transfer Modules

Students who have selected a field of study but have not yet selected the college
or university. 4vhere they wish to eamn their baccalaureate degree are advised to
take courses during their freshman and sophomore years outlined in one of the
Lower-Division 64-hour Transfer Modules. For students enrolled at any public
institution in New Mexico, these courses are guaranteed to transfer to any New
Mexico university and apply toward bachelor’s degree program requirements.

Introductory'Course in History, Theory, 3 hrs.

Students should consultt their current institutions regarding which

specific classes fit these categories. Lower-division transfer modules presently

exist for:

» Business

e Biological Sciences
¢ Engineering




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 704 Page 1 of3
SECTION: Student Services

POLICY TOPIC: Code of Student Conduct

IL

1IL.

General Rule

By registering at New Mexico Junior College, -a student assumes
responsibility for becoming familiar with and abidingfby the general rules of
conduct as established in the Student Handbook. Students who are also
employees of the College shall be covered by emplayee policieso
conduct and administrative appeal rather than such student policies.

General Provisions

Students at New Mexico Junior College neither lose the rights nor ‘escape the
responsibilities of citizenship. Students shall be expected to obey both the
criminal and civil statutes of the state of New Mexico and the federal
government, and the coﬁége's policies, procedures, rules and regulations.
Students may be penalized by the College for violating its standards of
conduct even though they are also‘punished by the state or federal authorities
for the same act.

Scope

New MexicosJunior College shall ha}%gjjurisdiction for disciplinary purposes
over a person who was a;student at the time the alleged violation of a board
poticynadministeative procedure or rule or college regulation occurred.

Disciplinary Actions and.Sanctions

A. When an ‘alleged -infraction of college policies, procedures, rules or
regulations 'is brought to the attention of the Vice President for Student
Services, an appropriate investigation of the alleged violation shall occur.
The "studént(s) involved shall be given the opportunity to present
his/her/their case. Following an investigation of the matter, the Vice
President for Student Services shall make an administrative decision on
the case and, if warranted, assess the appropriate disciplinary action.




0

M

X~

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 704 Page 3 of 3

Theﬁ earning) community at N ew Mexico Junior College doesnot intendtobe
prescriptive regarding th nd@y stems o f its members. However,
this community does believe that it has a right to expect its members to demonstrate
personal responsibility and integrity in word and deed. When the conduct of any member
falls outside the bounds of civil, moral, and ethical behavior, that member can expect the
community of New Mexico Junior College to call such conduct into question. The College
reserves the right to discipline students or student organizations:for inappropriate actions
that occur on or off campus)to secure compliance with these higher obligations. Students

ailing to maintain these higher obligations may be asked to. leave the academic
community. Students are expected to comply with all/College policies and procedures and
the Code of Conduct as outlined in the student handbook.

New Mexico Junior College officials have inherent authority:to maintain order and
discipline students. Students are expected to comply with all Gellege policies and
procedures. Students are also advised that violations of policy are cumulative in nature.
Although the NMJC Student Disciplinary System may haye some terminology and actions
that mirror the legal system, it should not be.confused with the criminal justice system.

The NMJC Judicial Process follows the basic. fundamentals of due process when
used to adjudicate student violations of Cgllege ‘regulations:Procedural due process does
not require legal represefifation, a public hearing, confrontation and cross-examination of
witnesses, warnings dbout privileges, self-incrimination, applications of double jeopardy,
or any of the remdining features of criminal jurisprudence. Circumstances, however, may
require provision of one:or more of these features in a particular case to guarantee the
fundamental concepts of due process.

The Vice President for Student Services is charged with the administration of the
discipline system at the College: However, the appropriate instructor shall impose
penalties for acts of cheating and plagiarism by students on any graded work or exam.
Department Heads, in coordination’ with program sponsors/coaches may impose penalties
for violations in cooperation with the Vice President for Student Services.

All persons authorized to administer discipline will use discretion in all disciplinary
matters, giving consideration to the particular circumstances. Severity of the misconduct
and prior violations 'will aid in determining to what extent discipline will be meted.

It may discipline students for failing to abide by its standards of conduct as outlined in the
current edition of the Student Handbook. Speake v. Grantham, 317 F.Supp. 1253 (S.D.
Miss. 1970)

Students who cause disorders and disrupt the school's educational environment may
be disciplined. Lansdale v. Tyler Junior College, 318 F.Supp. 529 (E.D. Tex. 1970)
Students attending the District are subject to reasonable rules and regulations of the
Board. Foley v. Benedict, 55 S.W.2d 805 (Tex. Comm. App. 1932); Calbillo v. San
Jacinto Junior College, 305 F.Supp. 857 (S.D. Tex. 1969)




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 705

SECTION: Student Services

0o p\k.w‘\' Page1of1

POLICY TOPIC: Student(Complain)Process

H. In order to comply with federal regulations, the Commission on
Institutions of Higher Education expects all affiliated institutions to
maintain records of formal, written student complaints which are filed
with the President of NMIC, the Vice President of Finance, the Vice
President of Instruction, or the Vice President of Student Services. In
order to comply with above policy, the following procedure has been
approved:

All students who wish to make a formal written complaint are
encouraged to complete the NMJ C Student Complain Form.

Complaint forms will be availfble through the Deans and*Directors

of programs and may be requested by stuci%nts faculty, and/or staff.
Should a student wish to file a formal complaint, please assist the
student in acquiring the proper form. Please advise the student that
the complete form may be returned you for:proper investigation and/or
transfer to appropriate supervisor.

Once the form is received, please document receipt and resolution of
complaint or notice offorward fo supervisor for investigation and
resolution.

Forward original copy to the appropriate supervisor: instructional
complaints 1o the VP of Instruction; fiscal complaints to the VP for
Finance; and student services complaints to the VP for Student
Services.

Supervisor will then follow-up with student as to satisfaction with
resolution of complaint.

Complaint form will then be submitted to VP of Student Services for
logging purposes.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY

Policy No. 804 Pagelofl
SECTION: Fiscal and Support Services

POLICY TOPIC: Commercial Activities at the College (including Sales/Fundraisers)

WA\

I.  Sales of Commodities on Campus {\9,,0 EN A o

No commodities shall be (nonngi)sold on campus by, any individual or
organization not officially part of the College exé:‘f%ough regularly
approved distribution channels such as the bookstore, concessions for
contracted events, food service or campus special events on approval. Other
sales of commodities shall be approved with the permission of the President
or his/her designee.

II.  Distribution and/or Sale of Publications.on Campus

A publication may be sold or otherwise distributed on campus if all of the
following conditions are met:

A. It is not disruptive of the edircational process, does not have a negative
impact on the image of the Gollége or does not cause serious campus
conflict.

B. The digtributor warrants holding the College harmless in any dispute,
claim or legal’ action resulting from the distribution or sale of the
publication.

(- ft-does not include interaction with employees during the period they are
onpaid status.

D. It is approved by the President, or his/her designee, as being appropriate
for distribution.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 806 Page 2 of 4

IV.  Funds Not Required for Immediate Operations

These funds shall be used to purchase:

A. US. government obligations with a maturity of net more than one (1)
year.

B. All investment securities other than local financial institution certificates
of deposit purchased by the College shall b&_held in third-party
safekeeping by an institution acceptable.to the College. The safekeeping
institution shall issue a safekeeping receipt to the College listing the
specific instrument, rate amount; maturity date, instrument number, term
and other pertinent information. %

C. Certificates of deposit of federally insured banks in Lea County.
Classification for collateralization of certificate of deposits shall be base.
on information from the:most'recent published. feport of the £/% <
ivestment institution. Blis

i all determine. the devel of collateralization

w4

fty percent level:

a. A primary. capital to asset ratio (as'defined by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) of six percent or greater.

b.“ A.net income (current quarter plus previous three quarters after
taxes) to average assis‘g;io of .61 percent or greater.

c. A ratio of non-performing loans (defined as loans which are at
least ninety (90) days past due) to primary capital ratio of 34.9
percent or less.

2. For a'seventy-five percent level of collateralization:

a. A primary capital to asset ratio of at least five percent.

b. A net income (current quarter plus previous three quarters after
taxes) to average asset ratio of at least .51 percent.

c. ratio of non-performing loans (defined as loans which are at
least ninety (90) days past due) to primary capital of greater than
49.9 percent.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 900 Page2 of 2

D. Institutional and subject matter related projects shall be conducted by
college employees. All such projects shall be in the public domain {the
realm embracing property rights that belong to the community at large are
unprotected by copyright or patent and are subject to appropriation by
anyone and/or for which no personal funds or monies; shall be paid to the
New Mexico Junior College District). Projects which do not fall in the
above category shall be considered when presented according to the
following procedures: '

1. Writing a detailed description of the proposed project.
2. Securing approval of the President:

a. If such projects are conducted by college employees other than the
faculty employees, approval shall be _secured from the President.
Prior approval shall be‘required before starting a project that does
not fall in the above two categories.and for which special approval
1s required.

b. In the event aﬁ};mject is conducted and the expens
borne by the individual employee, the, fruits:
belong to the particular-employee as it isfie policy of the
that projects accomplished by-the . empﬁoyee on hi
time-and at his/her ow ﬁense shallsbe his’her ~ own propérty.
Inthe.event the employee desires to share the results of - his/her
project with the College, a separate contract shall be agreed upon
between the Board and the individual as to such project.

IV. _Other-Conditions

Although the facilities are available for public use, individuals and groups
using the facilities shall abide by college policies as well as local, state and
federal laws and regulations. Those not abiding by applicable laws and
regulations and those disruptive of the educational process or those whose
general conduct is determined by the College to be inappropriate shall be
requested. to leave, and in the event of refusal, appropriate legal action shall
be taken:




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD POLICY
Policy No. 901 Page 2 of 4

C. Respect Copyright Laws

Computer software use must conform to copyright laws and
licensing agreements. Copyright law protects software licensing
agreements whether a copyright notice is explicitly stated in the
software or its documentation. Software licensed by the College
must only be used in accordance with the applicable license. It is
illegal to make duplicate copies of softwate products unless
authorized to do so by its author or publisher. Computer users
have no right to give or receive dt{%icates of soﬁwax%‘“dthout
authorization or to install duplicated software onto College
computing equipment

D. Respect the Rights of Others on'the:System .

Computer users shall not ollege’s information
technology resourcesto.participate in activities that are
harassing _in nature orprohibited by lawﬂ.ﬁSen_d_ing messages,
information, or images that are threatening, harassing, or
discriminatory in naturé.is in vielation'of Cellege policies and
may be‘imrviolation of thelaw. Displaying potentially offensive
material'in a computer laboratory or other campus location is not
allowed. Users are absolutely,prohibited from utilizing systems
to create, access, store or dissemihate materials that may be
sexually or racially offensive, or otherwise insulting or
derogatory te persons-ef.a.certain religious or ethnic group, or
‘persons having:disabilities.




NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE

Office of the President

Date: December 15, 2002

TO: New Mexico Junior College Board
From: Steve McCleery &7~

Subject:  Auction List

Attached is a list of equipment we intend to sell at the next institutional auction. Once
approved by the Board, the equipment list must be presented to the State Auditor for
review. During the 30 day required waiting period, the administration will proceed with
preparation for the auction. The items on the auction list are no longer utilized or needed
in the current equipment inventory. It 1s my recommendation that the Board approve the
list for the institutional auction.

Thank you for your consideration!

5317 LOVINGTON HIGHWAY = HOBBS, NEW MEXICO 88240 = (505) 392-5018 « fax 392-2526




| leuonoung | | 00'09S'Y

JBUOBOUNS-UON | L0’ _‘om Z
|euonouny om www
Jeuogoung | oo 8209
Jeuogoung | G6'61S
feuogouny | 00'b¥9
leuojouny | 00°S8Z'1
feuoiouny | 00°000°€
|euoouny | 00'S28 ]
leuooung | 00052
feuoyoung | 00'950° '
leuonouny | 1 00669'L
feuonouny | 00°90%
leuogouny | -
leuosouny | 00'eE6
jeuogouny | 00'950°2
[uoROUNd | ) LS}

[ leuonoung- _._oz -
[euogound | 00°950°Z
[euolound | 00'06%°Z
Jeuonoung -
jeuonaund -
leuogouny | -

[euogounJ-uoN | 052z’
[eucouny | 00'0£9
|leuogouny | /9918

~ leuogouny | 29918

|euonoung- coz 00'L96°L
feuoouny | 00029
Jeuonouny 5
Jeuoound | 00'S8Z'E
[euoiouny -

JEUOROUN4-UON | 00'G9Y'E
jeuohouny om 206

| [euoiound oo zs5'e

[eUOOUNJ-UON vo 00€"}
[euojouny | | oo°ees
[euonound | 00'990'C

NOILIONOD IANTVA OOV

$ [286L/L/Y
$ Nwm_:a
$ wwm::m
$ _mm::m
$ (826111111
$ |8161/L/S
$ [2.6L/L/01
$ l0/6L/LZ
$ |046b/1iL

$ 04617412

$ 9661/91/6
$ |9661/51/01
$ |9661/51/01
$ 966L/1/01
$ 9661/L/L1
$ 9661/51/01
$ |9661/6/6
$ |9661/51/01
$ omm:@.m

$ mmm W]V}
$ +mmm::m

$ |G661/1/6

$ |S661/L/6
$ 5661116
$ 0461114

$ vEBLILIY
$ |¥66L/LY
$ |9661/61/8
$ 9661/0€/S
$ |9664/L/S
$ |S661/1/TL
$ (566171111
$ |9661/1/2)
$ S661/1/2)
$ |166L/116
$ |¥661/L/0L
$ S661/1/S
$ ¥661/1/8

1~»+++

3Lvad D2V

T e

T

}-

1

+

AUON

0592
9i¥9
906210V}
SE0LWEOL
829£29
SUON

00vs
IUON
5581864
g480Z2ze98x
O188rIrEIAL
X6ESXPIVSIO
X6£ddZ529rD
¥9ZZ0veIvII
XS64X08E9EX
156620GHSN
YOEOYLELLOS
Q489Zzze99X
1001 ¥266091000X
$9010Z1008NLZS
ZZ01L0Z1008N.ZS
120L0Z}008N.2S
0LEQLdF
1569108162
ZLVEL
MJEBYEL00
909885
NE2420€ 198X
89VSYES
0MVELSd
81¥L0NOOOWELFS
LIVELSd
255£8000SN
2TLYL96
IUON
DOIL6ZYOSA!
¥520v008L60Y

| SuIyoe}y BuIgqnIDS Il OREOINY JUSY| v¥S0L | 06Z0LN
| Ueg JO-IND [EJUOZUOH UOSUYOL| €566 |  £620IN
| soymedhL 11 9U1001eS WEI| L¥66 | LEZOIN
i USWIYOBRY JOINIOIOH/M JOORI] BFp 9SED| /Y96 | ZOZOLN
i 149AnD ') - 4oz0014 ouepiBUd| 0ZL6 yLLOLN
i JojuoW 1009 yau) 61 Auos| G1¥8 | LSLOIN
| XN KeID| Giz8 | LYLOLN
| 810ss800y/M Juawdinb3 poy :oo 08€9 €/00IN
| __WWBnd| ge6¥ | O0SOOLN
| ppM Bl 692 | LOOOLN
| seinduwiod 0Z1/002L deWIemod aiddy| N | G¥Y0ED
1 1oInduiod 001/0925 9eWiemod aiddy| VN | ovp0eD
| JoHuoW Youl G} Aiddy| 880219 |  ZLYOED
| 1opuon you) 5| 8iddy| z80z.9 | 60¥0ED
| BJOWED WOOZ 0SOQ 99USIS [BYBIQ ¥2PoY| YN | 80VOED
| IndwioD 0z}/00z2 9eniemod aiddy| YN | 2010ED
| J9)UUd 19r19SET NG PIEOE] HAIMOH| YN | 9E0ED
| AONUOW /) >m39.m,o., YN | 98€0€9
| 1eindwod 0z1/00ZL 9B Jemod oiddy, VN | 18£0€D
| -3 £ - oMo WOX-QD peads PenD eqiusoL| g6vLz | £2E0ED
| JOWUOW ¥| OdId| /22LZ | 69E0ED
| wIONUOW p| OlWald| 92ZIZ | 89E0ED
| wJOYUOW | OlWRd| ¥Z21Z | 99E0ED)
| GL wnpuad - NdO owald| 921z | 8SE0ED
| JOJUOW You] | ORI ISOMPIN| YEVOZ | 0ZEOED
| AW 821 - dAuQ [eondO ojeuBeW| 8v00Z | B0E0ED
A SAIQ PIEH [eWad | /¥00Z |  BOEOED
| €€1 Wnued - NdD Aemaen — yN 2920€9
| 0558 Joies dnoigsom aiddy. wN | 0120€9
| JOJUOW G| Kemolen YN | SBLOED
| 004 WNUed - NdD OIWdId| E1LZ | 8SLOED
| «JONUOW p| Olwa)d| 9691 | I¥IOED
| 00} wnjuad - NdO olwaid| 10912 | 6LI0ED
13UUBDS OF 1BUEDS PIBYORC HOMOH| 2Z51Z | 91L0ED

| s0jeodng SHA 14 H OAT| p2¥8L | 6800€D
[ IS diNY 10119SET PUBYORd TaIMeH | €621 | 9YO0ED
‘ ped ebesse UOMAN| 02602 | SYOOED
12IndwoD Y OIOIN ISSMPIN| BEYOZ | OVOOED

ON vIi¥3s

NOILdI¥OS3A ON d70 ON DOriiN

juswdinby mo:_s_ pue Jofepy sapnjou) - uoilony o} Juawdinb3 Jo 1517 aje|dwo)

3937102 HOINNI OJIXIW M3IN

gJo | abed

e

e

——

T e T e e——— e T




jeuonouny | /G'991°) $ |0661/116 | 0009N%OV1SZ8VO | Jojuud N 1) J9jupese ejddy| 10821 | 9vZLIN
 |leUOOUN - coz 00'SES $ |0661/L/1) | 2092441 | saumadA | AX JSIMIPOUM s_m_ | 6ETLIN
feuopouny | o0 GesS $ [066L/1/L) | €152HL}) | 9yamadAL AX JelMIoaUM s_m__ 98¥LL | Z2ZLIN|
| leuogouny [ 62'60L $ [0661/1/6 |  LESSZYS | JOHUOW 99Y S3Y IH o_&< 2GLLL | 9SLLIN
| euogouny | 00124} $ |0661/1/6 ! €96/ | 98¢ - NdD _uu<asoo v60LL | LZLLIN,
| |euonoung | 00°055 fo%::m | 85821¥ |  BA DU ¢} um 19died oo:m%ﬂ S8691 | ZZILIN|
| leuonoung | 00'0SS $ |0661/1/6 | 158211 l WANoBA Youl | UM] jodied 8oUBADY| 18691 | 8LLLIN]|
 [euoioung- coz 06 ¥8t'L $ |0664/1/6 | lzesiveeoe | J8)ulld |11 0r19Se] pIexoed NBMOH| 82691 | SLLLIN
 leuoioung- coz 06'v8t'} $ |066L/L/6 | 6cesiveeoe | JsjuLd |l J9rJese pexoed WoMeH| 92691 | ELLIIN
| leuonouny- coz 06'v8¥'L $ 0661/1/6 | vzesiveeoe | 181Ul 1] 191195 PIBYOR NOIMOH| #2691 | LLLLLN]
| leuonouny | z1'ggl'e $ |0664/1/6 | 919SWHAOZEOLS | 12ndwo) x| %oE_ow.F G969L | ZOLLIN
[BUOROUNS | /G'99}°} $ |0661/L/6 | 6200+ 1 Jjouuedg ojddy| g¥E9l | SG60LLN|
feuonoung | /G'99}°1 $ |066L/L/6 | COBMXSYEOLd | s@ndwio) 38 ;moE_oms_ EVE€9L | O0BOLLN|
[euogouny | 06'919 $ |0664/1/6 | €eSLIviEloE | JejuLId 00G 19M4SaQ pJexoed HaMeH| GLESL | E€L0LIN
leuogound | 6£°602 $ (0661/L16 | OYOWLBELZYS | Joyuo 9O soY IH eiddy| $SZ9L | SPOLLN|
Jeuonouny | 00'006'2 $ |0661/1/8 | 8ves | 1a)id O} 19POW 00} 1dLOSI0I0D SWD| 91291 | 6EOLLN|
jeuojouny | 00°006'2 $ |0681/L/8 | 9865 | d 0} 19POW 00} 19149810100 SWO| 1029} | 9EO0LIN
 leuogoung- :oz 00'%LL'L $ |0661/L/Z | 0€Z00DH6 | 18hejd/19p1008y You| Z/L SHA U_Swmcmﬁ GLISL | €l60IN
| leuoyouny wm 986 $ |6861/L72) | OS8SWAEOLPBI | J8indwog snid Ysourew 095l | LEGOLN
[UOROUN NN 0LL'T $ 686L/1/8 |_LIOSWOA98LEd | Je)ndwod IS YSOUVEN| G09SL | LLEOIN
|euogoun- :oz 00'885 $ 686L/L/11 | Zy¥8zeo-1} | seyumedA] X JBYIMIPRUM s_m_ 98551 | ¥060LN
|euonoung | | 00°009° $ 6861/L/9 | SI69Y ] soReids Juied ssaply 00BID| 19¥G) | O¥80IN
|euonouny | 00°00S'€ $ 686L/L/Y | €011QS | Jayouas] Yyoum ._s_n_ S5 | 9080IN.
jeuopouny | 00'SES $ |8861/1/01 | }2ZL60E LI | JamadA) |1 JBIIMIZYM s_m_ 0825} | 0LL0IN
leuogouny | 00'GES $ 8864/1/0} ] £90960€ L1 | 1ojumadAL || JSIIMISSUM s_m_ €261 | €9Z0IN
jeuonound | GZ'/61'E $ [8861/Li6 | 3UON i ajulid LN | Jopipniese o_&< 29251 | €SIO0LN
leuonound | 00'004°} $ 8861/1/E | OLEELLLY | DQ-OV Japiepm 2y Jamod :.8:: Zyeslt | YPiOLN
[euonouny 38: $ |8864/1/9 . VI000W¥YILZ84 1oyndwiod snid ysoReN| GZZ5L | 2vl0IN
|leuonoun - coz 00°00€'E $ Em:E | Sl | aulyoepy Buibexoed %:s 0ZISL | LZL0LN
leuogoung | 1 00°566°S $ Em::m . £9Y¥OVI09C | he_costem__cfoc 85061 | SIZ0IN
[euonouny | Oy'L09 $ +8m::m | auoN [ 3pad 8qnoQ - 8SeleRlS - ¥sed . Z/8¥ | | 2990LN
| [euonoung | 00°9€9 $ |s86L/iTt | 122825 | sejumedAL 1l JSIMISSUM NG 965vL | £F9O0LN
[BUONOUNS-UON | 00'9E9 $ 1S86L/L1Y | eZrovl _ sapmoadAL Il JBIUMIBOUM NI OSPL | LLOOLN
leuogouny | GI°LIS $ |S861/1/1 | V89.€L | 19yuld Vv-0Sv1 1BYBIa] 1/€v) | 98S0LN
Jeuonouny | 00°0¥0'l $ (58611111 | S8Sr-1OY | JajeaH poy coE:m BEEVL | ZBSOLN
- feuondund | 00'009 $ |¥861/1/6 | £L0188 | J9)uLd soydess s_m__ Z80EL | OVSOLN
euoioung-uoN | ¥2'866'9 $ Nmm::m | 20210d2 | VYAMOE uonngusiq _.@soa 9EvLL | ZLVOIN
leuojounsy | 00'9E6'L $ [z861/L/01 - BUON 1012)U] "S'S/M JBUSEM SIGON| EELLL £8E0LN
NOILIGNOD  3JNIVA DOV 21vd DOV ON Wiy3s NOILdI49S3a ON G10 ON OFWN|

wawdinb3 souy pue sofepy sapnjou - uonony oy Juswdinb3z jo s sjeidwon

JFOIT1102 HOINNT OJIXIWN M3IN|

8 Jo z abey

e

e

=




[12UoRoUN3-UON | 96'682 I $ [€661/1/6 [ IS2000LAVZ | XS 98Y - NdD UOSAI[ 0561 | EYOLIN]
leuogouny | 06086t $ |€661/L/6 | 69¥0L0HJEE | OB 80 2-O SOUBS Pu3 BAIBS| 66261 |  LBSIIN|
Jeuooun - $ [£661/1/8 | 18083VOSEAD | 10JUOW You| ¥} oiddy| €626L | 6.G)LN]|

| levonound | 00°'€99°t $ |€661/1/8 | HV0BSIEEELd | uiid 009 O1d Jeumese oiddy| 68261 | ZISLIN
leuogouny | - $ |€661/1/8 | v03992I€€0S | JoyuoW youl v} oiddy| S8z6l | €IGLIN
[euogouny | - $ [£661/1/8 | v031RAIEEDS | JoyuoW youl vi aiddv| pBZEL | Z/SLIN
leuogouny | - $ [€66L/L/8 | P0IDAGOEELS | Jopuop Youl ¢} eddy 8,261 | 99GLIN
Jeuoound | 00°209° $ [£66L/L/8 | ZvD3SSSEEOX | seindwiod 059 SUWRD USOIUDBN| 02261 |  8SSLIN|

| leuopouny | 00209 $ €66L/1/8 | ZYONDBSEEOX | 19Indwod 0G9 SLIWAY USOIUIBIN | 69261 | 2SSLIN

- jeuogoundy | 00 2097 $ [€661/1/8 | €vod1sseedx | 1ondwiod 0G9 SUUSD USOIUDBIN| 85261 | 9VGLLN

| jeuogouny $ [£661/1/8 | 190v6QszEAd | JOWUON Yol ¢ B1ddy| ¥EZ6L | ¥ZSLIN
[euogouny | 91°605 $ [£661/L/S | oelesiiee | D D00S 12r¥$3Q Piexoed NOMeH| 81161 |  88vIIN
feuooUNy | 00'060° $ €66L/1/S | 09rsovbedl | JaUUEOS BUQ I0j0D YSOUISEN| 9LL6)L | 99¥0ED
[BUONOUNS | 25'699°Z $ [€66L/L/S | Z000L1ELOLOS, | 98 - %00galoN ppyndwos | 0LL6L | S8YLIN
[euogouny | 00'SSY'L $ £66L/L/1 | 910ZW%S8B9EVD | HLN Jopmese [euosiad aiddy| 82061 |  LSvLIN
feuopouny | 00°550° $ [€661/L/1 | l0auWvosezls | ioyuoW you) 9 aiddy| 22061 | OSVLIN|
leuoouny | 0£'68Y'} $ (2661/1/01 | esozdzopzod | 19)nduio IsI| USOIUDBIN | £5681 |  ZhPhIN;
leuonouny | 00'868 $ (266171101 | 686LIVEPLINL | I0J{UION 10N JOJOD UOISIOBId SMIPEY | GYE8L | 9EPLIN

leuonoung-uoN | 009442 $ 2664/M/L | zzievrovie | Auid 1l 18r10Se piexoed HOIMAH| L1681 | OEVLIN
leuogouny | 00'6L6'% $ 266L/1/E | Z6v01 | Jolulid 00y JosBT YOBLIERY| 09481 | LIVOED
leuoRouNy | 00°58 $ [2661L/1/) | zzeneoepidl | $9U0SS300Y/M JouueosouQ aiddy| 9€98L | 09¥0ED
leuogouny | 00'EPY'L $ [166L/L/Z) | 8zz0LPLLES. 8IN06 [2nQ NINOWed| ¥8S8L | 8SHOED
leuoouny | 00°'g8. $ [L66L/1/Z) | 69206ELL¥E. | olqepodsue)L SN IIinOUIea] £868L | /GYOED

IEUOROUNI-UON | 00°000'FL  $ | 1LE6LIL/S [ L1156V [ ssaid Buuud YOL BieqiopisH 9ev8L | LYELLN
Jeuojound | 05'Z90°E $ 166L/L/6 | L6HZ1 ] (ssalpooy) yun poo4 J0H| Gzv8L | BEELLN
Jeuoouny | 0€'695'L $ [166L/L/9 | LOLOW%IDOZYOVD | LN Jajupese (euosiod aiddy| zzesl | yeELIN
Jeuojouny | 00"00S'E $ |1661/1/S | €119 [ 4Z 19POW - 18)UNoD 18HN0D | 66281 | BLELLN
Jeuojound | 00°S04°} $ [166L/LE | 89869¥0€Z | GZ [BPON - Z/Sd W8Il Zv6l) | ¥8ZLIN
leuogouny | 00°501°4 $ |166L/L/E | slezevOET | GZ [OPOW - Z/Sd WAl 6E6LL | 18ZLIN
[euogound | 00'G0}°} $ [166L/L/E | e0889v0€T | GZ 19POW - Z/Sd W8I 8E6LL | 0BZILN
leuonouNy | 00°S0L’) $ | 166L/1/E | v8lzevO€Z | GZ ISPOW - Z/Sd W8I LEBLL | BLZLIN

| leuoouny | 00'604'} $ L66L/L/E | eczeev0Ez | GZ 19POW - Z/Sd WeI| SE6LL | LIZLIN
feuonoung | 00'S0L’L $ [166L/L/E | ouzevoez | GZ I9POW - Z/Sd Well| Z€6Zb | PLZLIN

| Ieuonound | 00690z $ | 166L/L/E | cessgeevivl | SZ [PPOW - 7/Sd Well| 22611 | 692N
[eUOROUNI | 00°590°Z $ |L66L/L/E | SzeesSivivL | GZ [9POW - 2/Sd W8lI| £261L | L9ZLIN
[euoiouNd | 0066 $ [1661/1/E | zez0-0002 | 00EZ 11 492Iuebi0 uoisd| 91641 | 9SY0ED
leuoiouny | 00°0v4’s $ [1664/L/1 | 525895069Y0€Z7 | SZ I9POW - 2/SA WEI| 018ZL | ISZLIN
leuonound | JG'994°k  $ |0661/L/6 | 0009W%0D00E0VD - sjuud LN Il Jopese aiddy| 80821 | 0SZHIN
NOILIONOO ~ 3INIVA DOV J1va 0OV ON VI43S NOILdISOS3a ON 10 ON OrAIN|

T

wswdinbg J iouy pue Jofey sapnou| - uonany o Juswdinb3 jo #m_._ Bm_nEoo

3931700 HOINNF ODIX3N M3IN|

g jo ¢ abed

——

= T———

=

————




| leuonaund- :oz GS'Z06'L
feuonouny- :oz g5 Nom b
Jeuonoung
leuoyoung -
Jeuonoung M 19'8€8°L
Jeuonouny :
[euonouny -
_mco_«ocsu_ co mwo Z
| |euonouny vm oww L
| leuogouny | (o0 108°}
Jeuonoung c
[ |leuopoun4- _._oz -
feuojoung | -
[euojouny | 99'920'}
| leuojound | /9°'920°}
feuonouny | 29'9Z0°}
[eUCHOUNS-UON | 00"€80'Y
IBUOHOUNS-UON | 002112
| leuonouny oo 000'Z
leuogouny | 00°000°Z
Jeuonoundg oo 812’}
[euooun oo 052
[euondung co 661°)
| leuopouny | [ 00°SPS°1
[euonoung-UoN | 00°'S¥S‘t
| leuonoung mm ¢i8
 [euonound- _._oZ 00°05€°L
|euogound-uoN | -
Jeuonouny H 00'00s
| leuonouny | 99'91L8
| leuogouny | 96889
leuonouny | 26°'22€°L
jeuoouny | 00°¥£0°}
| leuolouny | $2°/Z¥'0L
Jeuoouny | 00°0£0°C
 |leUOBOUNS- coz 00°k2Z'}
[leuonoung-uon | -
 Jeuogouny | -
NOILIGNOD ~ JNTVYA DOV

U4 &

$ [S661/1/01
$ 5661/L/0L
$ |5661/1/6
$ |S661/1/6
$ [S66L/1/6

$ [S66L/L/6

$ S661/1/6
$ |5661/1/6
$ G66L/116
$ |5661/1/6
$ |S661/1/6
$ S661/L/6
$ |S661/1/8
$ S661/L/L
$ |S661/4/L
$ |S66L/L/L
$ S661/1/9
$ |S66L/L/Y
$ [064/1/1
$ [0L6L/b/1
$ [¥66L/1/0L
$ |¥661/1/0)
$ ¥661/1/0)
$ ¥66L/L/0)
$ | ¥661/L/0}
$ [¥661/1/6
$ [v661/1/8
$ |¥661/1/6
$ [ ¥66L/L/L
$ [ VE6L/LIY
$ VE6L/L/E
$ | ¥661/L/E
$ £66L/L/E
$ [€661/1/E
$ €66L/L/2h
$ |€661/L/04
$ €661/L/01
$ [€661/1/6

Tt

1

-

1

G00S2019dr
wmvvoo_.mun__..

9¥800N000NESZS
8€800N000WESZS

882205d

6€€10Z1008N.ZS
£8600Z}008N.ZS

622005d
SES50Sd
£26505d

8Z200N000WE0ZS
1000010000A2ZS
¥¥Z00N00OWESTS

G2G89E6
6550.¢€6
969€0€
0£23JdHIILSD4
Z1r690€£21 58X
CLOLIW
£2490012¢€
¥2s6504948n
auopN
0de8oeLeron
OMEDSOYErax
OMEVLZ9EFaX
LA124182
99200V.LPY
4595061 -06-V
08ELESPEAL
LovEL
BISPOCSErd
229000190
£08624d
dmeLolLeay
FALT1ZHSPEDS
LGEO0VLED
umouyun
6667 L SESE.

Nid W 18rise piexoed tw_.sw_.__
auud snid Wb 19rJeseq piexoed sw___sw_._
AONUOW ¥ o_EEn_

JONUOW ¥} o_EQn_

G/ wnjuad - Ndo o_EQn_
JOMUOW 1 o_EEn_

~ONUOW 1 o_EEm

G/ E:::wn_ ndo o_Em._n_

G2 wnjuad - Nd) olwaid|

G/ wnjuad - Ndd .o_Eo._n_+
JOHUOK ) o_EEn_

IOJIUOW You| G| o_EQm

JONUOW | OIWdId|

Olpey 8|qelod $3d 39|

Olpey siqeyod SOd 39|

OlpeY 819eH0d SOd 39

9 D08z on( Yo0giamod zmoE_oms_
ndwos 0019 JeW Jomod ;moE_oms_
00} Jdajiy :ocmo

052 wEocmP

d Al 18r 18seT piexoed BajmaH |
sjuswIyoERY/M SUIYIBW INd um._
seindwo) 055 71 con_ums_
19)ndwon ey Jamod :on_ums_
Jendwon) sepy 1amod :on_omS_
JOJUOW 10j0D) wn______._n_

HOA oEmecmn_

JoHuUolN Yyou) | S_m_

JB8)Uug sNid G2y _E_m_n_

W 821 - @auqg [eando Qm:mms_
Jald Z5L | Jese OmD
0S/2Xa98¥ - NdD coam
VQa-2rady 19poN WOYH- oo
UoReIS XVA O1A 000F _s_m_o
sendwo) 0g9 eIpend _._on_oms_
HOA 10000 SIINYS dIuoseued |

I0JUOW you) b} m_mm<+

~ JOHUOW You| {7} uosdg|

s6cie
Y6212
8921z
18212
95z1Z
Lizie
01212
L0212
50212
00Z}2
16112
G6112
£6112
€E0LZ
62012
zz012
¥¥602
£980Z
11802
94802
6502
L2502
12502
61502
81502
90502
£EY02
LEE0Z
¥ZE02
900z
6£00Z
62002
20661
L0661}
06864
vZ961
12861
zL16)

11—+

+ o+

SCZZIN]
vZZeIN|
02zZZIN|

“61LZZIN|

88LZIN
EPIZIN
ZYIZIN
6E1ZIN
LE1ZIN]
ZEIZIN]
621ZIN]
LZIZIN]
SZIZIN
LZ0ZLN
LLOZIN
0LOZLN
ZI6LLN
G96}LN
561N
9561 LN
LL6LIN
906} LN
168LIN
068} LN
6981 LN
¥88LIN
S98LIN
L98LIN
¥S8LIN
ZLLLIN
LLLLIN
69LLIN
IZILIN
9Z.LLIN
SLZLIN
169} LN
0691 LN
¥991 LN

EIR-{aRivie)/

ON TVIY¥3s

uswdinb3 Jouly pue Joleyy sepnjoul - uonony o) Juswdinby Jo 151 ajRIdWoD

NOILJIIOS3A ON 10 ON IFWN

39377100 HOINAr OJIX3W M3N

8 Jo  obeg

= ey

e —




Jeuonouny

Jeuonaun4

[eucioun 4
Jeuonoun
Jeuonoung
Jeuonoung
[euoouN 4

{euoouny

|euolouny
[euojoUNg

oo %4
oo A4 A

[ 00562
[00'126°L

+ i
| 00°669')

+oob+ 4

00'££0°€
00'950°Z
16°9G2'1
| 00959

_mcozoc:n_ UoN | v8° mmN £

jeuonouny
[euonoun
[euonoun
[euonaung
Jeuonound
Jeuonoung
JeuoRouny
feuonouny
Jeuonoun4
{euonoung
[euooung

+

+

+

4

| 00'9Lp'Z
o091’z

| 00912
oo 91’2
oo w_.v [4

oo 0422

_NCO_uUCJH_ COZ 00°26S
‘_mco_woc_.dn_ COZ | Ll w,mo
[euonoun4-uoN | 22999
| 05°2¥L
| 00168
| 00'vy8
| 06'86%'%

jeuonouny
jeuonouny
|eucnoung
[euopoun4
[euoiouUN 4
[euonoun
jeuonoung

06'68S

| 05295

05°¢95

H_m:o:o::u_-coz 00908
| [BUOOUN]-UON | 00 0812

Jeuonound
{euonjoung
[BuonoUN4

oo i8t'L
oo 181"}

[euOROUN-UON | 88'88E" |

NOILIONOD

D e

VA ‘'0OV

$ [966L/L/0)
$ |9661/1/01
$ (96611711

.

+

$ |966L/51/0L

+

$ |266L/L11
$ |9661/1E/L
$ [9661/1E/L
$ [9661/1€/L
$ |9661/.2/9
$ |9661/5/9
$ |9661/1/G
$ |966L/1/5
$ |9661/1/
$ |9661/1/S
$ |966L/1/G
$ 9664/1/G
$ |9664/L/S
$ |9661/1/
$ [9661/1/5
$ |9661/1/5
$ (9661/1/5
$ |9661/1/
$ |0664/L/Y
$ [S86L/1/6
$ |S861/V/L
$ |£86H/L12
$ |Z86L/1/S
$ [G661/L/
$ [5661/1/01
$ |G66L/1/6
$ |S66L/L/0L
$ [S66L/1/0)
$ |G664/L/6
$ S661/1/8
$ G66L/L/6
$ |5661/L/6
$ |S66L/1/6
$ |5661/1/6

+

4

31va DIV

-+

+

+

+

1

£18U9G9E9AL | Indwo) 0Z1/00¥5 JeNIemod aiddy  wN 1S8ZIN
EIBAGSOEIAL | ndwo 0z1/005 %eW Jemod aiddy|  WN | geszIN
6028021 | J8MON PoBM BOH ysnig 14 G| WN LESZIN
1520645 ] EEL Wniued - NdO Aemales| YN | 9z8ZIN]
9SNri0L/z906 | JONUOW ¥} 18] VN €18ZIN
D18OS00Z9VX | INdwoD) 09z BULIOLSd USOIUREN| YN | BE/ZIN|
AWQ9IESZIOAL | WoD 00ZZ USOIIOEW Jamod 8iddy] WN | 2E.ZIN
AWNQOEEGZIAL | _WoD 00zL ysowrcen Jemod olddy|  WN | 98sZIN
¥¥60200HSNS | Jaid 19rJ8SET NG PIEXORd MBIMSH | YN | /69ZIN
L00VIVZSAL | _Jeluud GV eNBId WN L89ZIN|
280126 | id Jojsuel] [BULBYL IX06 BIG8Z| WN | GL9ZIN
X6EMdZPO9rD | Joyuop youl G} 9iddy| 1/61Z | L99ZIN|
X6EAWZPOOrD | Jopuop Youl Gt aiddy| 92612 | 999ZIN
X6ErdCYOoro | IoJuOW you) gL aiddy| 12612 | 2992IN
X6£S80Y09r0 | JoNuoW youi G aiddy| YN | 099ZIN
X4EXHBSL904 soindwio) 00G/ YsoluveW Jamod aiddy| 9961c | 6S9ZIN
X4E0M8G1904 18)ndwod OS2 UsoluBN Jomod Biddy|  WN | 8S9ZIN
X4€Sr861904 | sendwiod 00G. usode 1emod siddy| €961 | LSIZIN
X4ErA85190d | soInduwod 0062 USOIDBW Jomod siddy|  WN | €S9ZIN
XJEA86190d WOD 00GL USOUIBIN Jemod alddy| /S6lz | ZG9ZIN
X6E£S6Y09rD | JONUOW you| G4 9iddy| pS61Z |  0S9ZIN
X4€0rgs1904 19)nduIod 0052 YSOWIOBN Jomod a1ddy €56L2 | 6VIZIN
ZZGOLVV0D | 0D HOAAL UOISIAUWO OIUOSBUBY LOELS | E9ZIN
9L000DHS3 | JopI0d8Y SHA OlUOSBUBH| €¥ZLG | ZL9ZIN
BUON | 19pI008Y SHA JlUOSeUBd| /EZLS | ZLIZIN
SEEYS | 1008f01d Wil WW9L 3| 98805 | 8YSZIN
£6GC-2862L | JONUOW/IBAIB00Y JOIOD YOUI GZ ¥O| 0090S |  OESZLN
ZISVIO06LSHL | Il 00Q ong aiddy| 6vsLz | LI€ZIN
€22 | S uopdslord 00740100 BWIX0ld| SOYLZ | BEEZIN
Y0205 16 ! SIGON JHA LYOHST| ¥5¥LZ | VESZIN
¥9006% | 8#HeD JIOD IPBUM €| 62FIZ | ZIECIN
0Z106¥ | LE#HBD JIOD ISBUM €| [ZPIZ | SLEZIN
IdPXTNEZSYD | isjuld Sd Jemmiese aiddy| 60viz | OLEZIN
996895vva | asadAL X081 Miun JeiseiNieseT| SOvLZ | OEZIN
¥8600Z1008NLZS | JOUOW | OMIRId| 99ELZ | 682ZIN
Hyy6EHIESOd | nduio) 0012 OB JOMOd USOIUDBN| €0ELZ | 62Z2IN
HYPBYHIESOd | ndwoD 00} 2 9B JOMO USOWRBN| Z0ELZ | 8Z2ZIN
8YISD06LIr9g - d 09€ 109195 Joumiese oiddy| 96212 | 92ZZIN
ON VI43s NOILdiS0S3d ON G10 ON OFIN

yswdinbgy 5:.5_ pue Jofep sepnpu; - uonony of Juawdinb3 jo uw_._ Qm_n_Eoo

3937102 HOINNI ODIXIN MIAN]

8 Jo G abeyd




| leuogoung + 00’682 $ €66L/1/1 | 69621201 XH | [BUIWIB L O0CE-LA __w\zm_o 61061 | 8BLELN|
[euogound | 00'682 $ €661 1 L9641 20 MH | _m:_E._o.h. 0Ze-1A _E_m_n_ 81061 | LBLEIN
feuondound | 00682 $ %mm L | 88841 LSOMH | [EUILWIB | OZE- LA _E_m_o 21061 | 98LEIN|
leuogound | 00'682 3 |E66L/LL 1 ¥9621201XH 1 [eunwa] 02e-1A _E,m_n_ 91061 | SBLEIN

| leuoouny | 00'682 $ +mmm 51213 | 296/ 1Z0IMH | [eujuaj Qze- LA _S_m_n_+ G106l | PBLELN,
feuopouny | 00'68¢ $ |E66H/ L1 i GO962120IMH | leuiuia] 0zZe-1A feubig | PIO6L | €8IEIN

| [euojound | 00'68¢ $ |€661/L/1L ! 8841 1S0XH 1 leuiwa | 02E-1A _E_m_o €061 | ZBIEIN
| [euopoung | 00'68¢ $ |EBBL/L/L | 85621201 MH | leuluua] 0Ze-1LA eybia] 41015 { 18LELN|
[euolouny | 00682 $ |E66L/HIL i €LCH9EOMH | lewiulg] QzZe-1A _E_m_n_w LIO6F | 0BLELN]
[euonoung | 00°68¢ $ +mmm 191748 | G9Z1 LI9EO0MH ! [euiwia | OZe-1A _S_m_n_ 01061 | BLLELN
[euonouny { 00'68¢ $ |€66L/L/1 | LSZ1H9EOMH | [euiulal 0Ze-1A _E_m_o 6006} | 8LIELN
[euonouny | 00682 $ €661/ 1) ] 28821 1SOMH | jeuiila ] QZe-1A _E_m_n_ 8006} | LZZEIN

| leuojoung | 00'68¢ $ (E66L/L/1 | 896.120MH | jeuiws | 0ge-1A _E_m_o 006} | Ql/EIN
feuonouny | 00'68¢ $ [E661L/L71 | 09621 20IXH | leujwal 0ge-1A _E_m_o 90061 | SiLELN
[euohouny | 00'682 $ €661/ | SG6L1C0MH | jeulla| Oge-1A _Q_m_n_ 0061 | ELLEIN
[euonouny | 00682 $ mmm:: 3 | 6S6L1LC0LMH | jeuiwa | 0Ze-LA _E_m_m €006L | ZLLEIN
jeuonoung | 00'68C $ mmm L/ 1 €881 LSOMH | [ewiuua ] 0Ze-1A _E_m_n_ c006L | LLIELN
feuopouny | 00'68¢2 3 +mmm L 1] 98811 1SOMH | jeuiial gge-LA _B_m_o 1006F | OLLELN
jeuonoung | b0'65€E $ [L66L/1/6 I LOLPISLLZS | jeuiuua] gZe- 1A _s_m_o S0S81 | €69ELN
[euonouny | 00'65€ $ | +661/L16 | 661991128 | jeuiug] 0Ze-1A _E_m_n_ v0S8L | ZBOEIN
[euogound | 00'6SE $ 1661/1/6 | 1605991 17S | feulilig]l 0Ze-IA _E_m_o €058F | IG9EIN
leuoouny | 00'65S€ $ 1661/1/6 | 9605991 178 | [euiuls] QZe-LA _S_m_n_ €058l | 069EIN
jeuonouny | 00'65¢€ $ HE6L/116 i ¥0S¥#991 1 ZS | jeuiwia] 0zZe-1A _E_m_n_ L0581 | B689EIN

[ feuoouny | 00'6SE $ 166L/L/6 )] 8CCr99L LZS | [BulwId] OZE-LA _E_m_o 00581 8BOEIN
feuogouny | Q0'6S¢€ $ |166L/L/6 i LLSPO9LLZS | [BUILLRL OZE-1A _E_m_n_ 6681 | LB9EIN
[euonoung | 00'6SE $ |166L/1/6 | £2Z799L1ZS | [eulial QZe-1A _S_m_n_ L6¥81 G89ELN

| [euondund | 00'6SE $ 166L/L/6 I 802991128 i jeuiua] gZe-1A _S_m_n_ 96¥8L | ¥BIELN
| [euojoung | 00'6S€ $ 166L/L/6 | CCey9alLLZsS i jeuluua] Oce-1A _E_m.o S6¥8F | E€BIELN,
jeuogouny | 00'6SE $ 166L/L/6 | PLEPO9LLZS | jeuiula ] 0Ze-1A _E_m_o v6¥8L | CB9ELN
[euojound | 0569y $ 1661V | 69E0¥Ir0ZS ] jeuluwusl 0Ze-1A _E_m_n_ 04281 | 8S9ELN
[BUCHOUNZ-UON | 0E'6L¥ $ 066L/L/1 1 | SeEPLCOP0ZS | jeuils | 0ge-1A _mu_m_o v8vil | OE9ELN
[euonoung | O¥'00F $ omm::m | ¥62092E0WH i lewiuua] 0Ze-1A _m«_m_n_ 99141 | ¥OSEIN
[euonound | 00°'S66'L $ wmm Lty l £L591LD | Jaquionels 14000y ._me::_SP 6581 ZI6CIN
feuohouny | 00'666'L $ +omm.::v | SL0P8 | 19qUIDNEIS 1d000P JoIsewliels| GBI | LIGCIN
[BUOIOUNS-UON | 00'GPC'¥ $ 1966L/HY | umouun 1 ihwpeal]l 000s lnwueing h....womn_ 89GLZ | SO6ZLN
jeucioungy oo 0602 $ \.mm L/8¢C/1 | 98E¥8Y9 | 991 wniuad - NdD >m>>£mo VN | 6.8CIN
feuojouny oo }E6°E $ omm Velich | 2718131i¥98XS ! Jaindwo) (02/0056 SepIemod o.&( VYN | 998¢IN

| feuopdung oo 2892 $ _mmm: L0l A186612€98X ) :ano 0Z1/00Z. Jepy Jamod m_a% VN | ¢€S8CIN
NOILIANOD ANIVA DOV J1va DoV ON TVIH3S NOILAIMOSIA ON 10 ON IMWN

] H ] wawdinbg ..o:.s_ pue Jofepy sepnjouj - uonony of Juswdinbg jo .._m_._ Qm_nEoo
| | 3937709 HOINNI OJIXIW MIN|

8 Jo g abeqd

T g




o+ o+t

ttm—t—t—rt

1

B —

+

4+

-

Lv8YIN

SY8PIN

Ov8YIN
8E8PLN|
LESYLN]

9E8YLN

SESVIN|
0690€9
6890£9
8890£9
2890€9]
LELVIN
$290€9

ZI97IN

LLOFEN
96509
9.50€9

4GSPLIN
2950€E9
FISYIN
66VVIN
L6VPIN
96¥FVLN
9GP LN
SGPPIN

ZSYPIN|
LEVFIN
SLPPIN|
EPOPIN

ZEO0PIN

60S0£D
£050€9
LEVOED

808ELN

€6.EIN
L6LELN
06.ELN

68.E1N

leuonound [ 00°€SH'Z $ [£66L/L1C) | MHVH3LoREX | indwo 05z/0059 SBWIaMOd 3iddy]  WN

| leuonouny | 00’651z $ |L66L/112) | MHvagogviax | Indwod 052/0069 dBNIaMOd aiddy| N

| feuopouny | - $ | 266L/L/T) | ON9LHOLELAD | LJONUOW G| Biddy|  wN

| _leuogouny | - $ Bm::ﬁ I 0N99HoLEAd | AOCNUOW G| m_.m.mﬂ YN

| leuopouny | - $ (266111121 | ON9EHOLELAD | wONUOW G| Bjddy|  WN
feuogouny | - $ |L661/1/21 | ONOYVHOLEZAD | AONUOW G| o_&< VN
leuogouny | - $ |661/L12) | ONYOMOLELAD | JOYUOW G| o_&< YN
leuogouny | - $ | 2661/L/11 | 0NegI091IAD | Jopuop youl g1 2ddy’ wN
|euogoung | - $ (266111111 | OAQVI09LLAD | Jojuow you) 61 siddy|  wN
leuopouny | 00°ESH'Z $ 26611711 | XHYAMOLpZEX | 19ndwiod 6/2/0059 dBIamod aiddy|  wN

| Jeuonoung 8 £SP'C $ |266L/1/1) | XHVomOLvi8X | sendwiod 6/Z/0059 SBNIOMOd m_&.q VN

leuonoun4-uoN | 00'289 § /661/5L/0L | 06OEO0V0L6 | YDA 9sde swi] Yenn duoseved|  WN

IBuonoun4-uoN | 1212 $ |2661/5L/6 | P6Bry6YIdH | 0D 00Z/00v9 BULIOLA YSOUIREW| YN
leuonound | 00°020°'Z $ |2661/5H9 t 0ZZd8 | 991 wnyuad - Ndd IPQ) YN
Jeuopouny - $ L661/51/9 | £806208 | WJONUOW G} PA| YN

| ieuonoun-UoN | 00'v18'Z $ 16611116 | 8¥6919.2 | g€z wnpuad - ndD Aemaren|  wN
[euojound | 00'662°) $ 266L/1/9 | ravddogzivX | 1endwod Gzz/0059 dBIemOd siddy|  wN
[euolouny | 00'989'C $ |2661/22/9 | Aovosevziax | ndwiod 002/0098 SBNISMOd m_&.ﬂ ¥N
|leuopoung | 00'L6L'E $ |266)/LiY | 685122 | Jendwog doyden 1a0-0ev 01d SWlISIeS BqIYSOL | BESYLN |
Jeuoyouny | 00°195°} $ |266L/11Y . DABNIZL0LAL | ndwod 0g1/00vS JBIN Jamod 9jddy|  wN
leuonound | 192/ $ 16611112 | PE6VIOLOAN | [euiuLa 0Z5-LA [ENBIa| YN

| feuonound | g9'Z/E $ 166L/L1T | V¥BVLOLOAN | leulULB] 0ZS-LA IBWBIa| VN

| leuopouny | g9'ZLE $ 2661/1/C | TEBYLOLOAN | JeuuLa L 0zS-LA IENBla| WN

| leuoyoung | 00°90% $ 9661/5L/0L | XGEOAL909rD | soyuop youj g1 eiddy| 60105a
Jeuojound | 00'90 $ [966L/51L/0L | X6EdHZIYEIrD | Joyuol youj 61 9)ddy| 80105a

| leuogoung | 00°'90% $ [9661/€2/6 | X6EZOLOEIrD | JOPUOW youl G} aiddy| 5z105a
jeuosouny | 00'90% $ 9661/LLiL | X6ELAL909rD | JOWUON Wou| G} eiddy| ¥200sQ
feuoRound | 00'90% $ 9661/1/0} | XBEOHEOEIrDS | Jo)uop Youl G @iddy| 90105q
leuogouny | 00°'9LZ $ S66L/LIY | ZTYE00N000dEsky | JOUUOW ¥| OlWR)d | /7802
feuonouny | 00°692 $ |S661/1/E | TSLOMEWOSAD | Jo}uoN you| v} 8iddy | o¥80Z
leuopound | 00'ZEY $ |S66L/L/L | XBEdHOEEVrD | Joyuop uedsyny ayddy | g0z
[euogouny | 00'ZEY $ v66L/1/1L | X6EMHIEEFID | JopuoW you) G, aiddy | 1£90Z
leuonoung | 00'L8E $ v66L/L/S | v03vdygoyss | Jopuop you) v}, 8iddy| 7002
jeuonouny | 00°06€ $ |€66L/L/E | GSESNEOEVL | feuua) 0z¢-LA 1B1BIQ] 2061
feuogouny | 0£'9SE $ €66L/L1T | ezwedlvevL | leuluua] 0zt~LA 1BYBIA] 95061

| leuojound | 00'682 $ [£66L/1/1 | VBZLI9EOMH | leuiusal 0ZE-LA 1BHBIA| 22061
leuopouny | 00'682 $ |€661/L/1 | S8CLI9EOMH | leuluLa) 0Ze-LA IBHBIA| 12064
Jeuojound | 00'68Z $ |€661/L/) ~ BSZTLLOEONH leulwa | 0ze-1A [BWBIA] 02061

NOILIQNOD  3NTvA DOV~ 31vd DOV ON VIN3S NOILJINOS3a ON a10 ON OFWN

juswdinb3 Jouy pue sofepy sepnjou - uokINY o} Juawdinb3 jo s ajeidiucy

3937100 HOINNI ODIX3IW MIN

g jo 2 ebed

Tt e e Ty

C o e ——————



 [BUONOUNS-UON | G562 $ |000Z/81/C A 981913 181025 J2813/m S|ge As¥20H Iy WN | SG6SSIN

- +

.s

Jeuoouny | 00'80L°} $ 666L/2L/Zk | VIHONI0S6EX | 0S€-v 9eeMOd aiddy|  WN | 0.GSIN|
IBUOROUNI-UON | 00"LL€"} $ 666LvL/OL | 26821451 | Il wniuag-nd) Aemeres| WN | 120LED)
leuonouny | 00'0GE’E $ 0661/1/8 | SUON | 8 - Jeg JUBWIPUOD ¥ PEIBS| 2928 | LIELIN
Jeuojound-uoy | - $[8661/0L/L) |  6Z6ELLVKOOLL | ] JOJUOW 2} Kemaieo|  WN | 0GZSIN
| JBUOIOUNS-UON | - $ |9661/92/0b |  8S9ZL0OVO0LL | JOyUOW /| Remales YN | 1£90€9)|
| leuojouny | 00'8YY $ 8661/92/0L | 6ZYOWZBZ8AD | JUOW /| ysouew aiddy.  WN | 912GIN
eUOROUN-UON | 00°6VE'} $ 866L/02/0L | M6EAHO09E8YM | +OHUOW Qg ysope eiddy|  ¥N | 60ZSIN|
|euopoung | - $ [8661/0Z/0b | 6ZYIMIOESADD | JONUON /) 9ddy| YN | 00ZSIN|
jeuoioung | 00'6EY'| $ |8661/02/0L |  X8QIHSZreAX | 00 99z/€-D JeWIaMOd Biddy]  WN | /6IGIN
leuonouny | 00'288't $ |8664/02/0L | $IA0LLI¥BEX | 00 992/€- oeemod aiddy| YN | £0ZSIN
leuogouny | 00°288'L $ 8661L/02/0L | V/TIS0SONI0SZYEaX | dopisaq €0 usouvew aiddy|  wN | ¥6/0£9
leuonoung-uoN | - $ 866L/02/0b | 6ZYOQ06ZIAD | JOWUOW /| Blddy] YN | €6.0£D
Ileuogound-uoN | 00'8bY $ 8661/L1/9 | 6ZYMHI0Z8AD | JONUOW ) Bddy, YN | /9IGIN
leuogound | 00°00¥ $ 18661/11S | 200ADHooEdX | WoD Q08 eipeny oep 1emod 8iddy|  WN | ZPISIN
[euoound-uoN | 00°64¥'1 $ |866L/5L/S | €ADTdJEslEEX | Joindwo) gez/e-9 deemod alddy] YN | GpISLN
JeuoRoung-UoN | 00'6HY'L $ 866L/7L/S | M9aoxorieax | €€2/C-D JBNIaMOd 3|ddy| YN | OpLSIN
leuopound | 00'ESHT $ |1661/L/Z) | MHVHe09¥aX | 19ndwio) 05z/0059 depvemod aiddy| YN | 6vBYIN
[euoioungd | 00'18S $ 8661/62/y | 6ZVWOVI08AD | JONUOW /) Bddy,  WN | #OLSIN

| [euonoung - $ 8661/SLIV | _ONOMHIBYIAD | JOWUOW Gl 8ddy,  WN | 86209
{2UooUN-UON | 00 NE ; $ 8661/51/Y | LEBABLLIEIYM | JOHUOW 0z 81ddy, YN | 09209
|euopouny | $ |8661/51/Y | ONGTHI6VPLAD | JONUOW G| 3)ddy,  WN | 6520€D
leuoyouny | - $ 866L/S)/Y | 8EHAZEOES86Y | JOWUOWGL | VN | 1Z/0£D
Jeuooung | €2°002 $ 8661/62/F | P90ELHESDS | S 0019 18MUBOS PIEXOBd NSIMOH| YN | GZOGIN
leuojound | 00'0LE $ £66L/L1Y | l608NEOEVL | [eulIS) Oz-LA IBVBIA| 68061 |  LISELN
[euojoung | 00'660'Z $ 866L/v2/C | XHV00ZPI8X ssinduiod 05z/0059 deIemod eiddy|  WN | ZOOSIN
[eucyound | 00°099'2 $ 866L/GL1) | ovvprosziax | ndwod 6/2/0059 oewiemod aiddy| YN | EL6PLN
[euooung | 00'099°C $ 8661/5L/L | Ovvaioegwiax | ndwo §/Z/0069 eNIomOd Biddy| YN | ZL6YIN
leuonouny | - $ |266L/5bTL 6725958 | AOJUOWGL Q] VN | 966VLN
[BUOOUNS-UON | 00°888') $ L66L/SL2L RYE ) | 002 WNjusd -NdO 18a] YN | ¥B6PLN
IBUoOUN-UON | 00'988'} $ 66LiSbEL g:4v0 | 00z wnpued - NdO A VYN |  €66VIN
leuopoung-uoN | - $ i66L/Skk | 122558 | AJONUOW GLIPA] YN | Z68PIN
leuoouny | 00'689'1 $ 6645121 | ANBSO | 00z wnjuad - NdO LA, VN |  198VIN
|euogounJ-UoN | 00°66. $ 266V/SLTL | SBL6lOdOSN | Joluld dNG 1or1aseT] pieyoed WameH| YN | pZ8YIN
leuopoung-uoN | - $ 166L/TLiT) L€8682V6005)  JONUOW GL AeM3leD VYN | 906VIN
NOILIONOD ~ JnvA©OV _ 31vQ DOV ON vI¥3s NOILdI¥OS3d ON Q10 ON OrWN

uawdinb3 Joui pue Jofew sepnjou) - uolony o) Juawdinb3 Jo 1511 ajedwo)
JO3T710I HOINNT ODIXIN M3IN

g jo g abey

E S e

e e r———— we—

R W et



[eucioung-UuonN + 00'65¢ $ e66L/LicL |
jeuoioung | 00'98¢ $ |€66L/8 |
jeuonoung | 00'S6¥Y $ mmm_..‘:\- |
leuopouny | 00's6y  $ |€6BLLL |
leuopound | 00°G6F  $ |S66M/ML |
[Bucjoung | 00°S6¥ $ |E664H/1IL |
[euoyoun | 00'¥6¥ $ (E66L/HG

_[euonoung | 00'9Ly $ mmm _.,,.__ HS |
[euonoung | 00°59¢ $ mmm Wiy |
jeuonaund | 00°68¢ $ +Nmm 271
jeuoioung OO 69¢ $ 266L/L/L |

mum_OwaO -- [euonoung om See $ | |bE6HLE |
feuoioung ] | 00'8vE $ Omm ::N |
[euoiound L ¥56lC $ Omm HUoL |
[euoiaung | 00'6vE $ Omm 2475
{euonound | 98'691 $ Omm bLE |
[euojaung | £2°00€ $ +®mm 7171 2N
leuonoung | 009Le $ 646L/L108 |

[euonoun 4-UoN ¢
Jeuonoung - g |
leuopouny | 6997 $ |966L/8L12L |
jeuonoung | §8'892 $ mmm:w Her |
[euonouny | 58'89¢ $ mmm HeLZL |

R | - $ +omm HOE/9 |
luogouny | - $ 966L/L/9 |
|euonoungy | - $ 066L/1L/G |
jeuonoung | 56’662 $ 966L/91/6
luogouny | - $ 966l |
leuogoung | - $ 96619 |
jeuonoung L $ (16611171 |
jeuonaund | $ 1661/L/1 |
euogouny | - $ [66MLL |
jeuopoung | I $ 16648 |

MON - W

MoN - ¢ I

NOILIONOD ANTVA DIV 31va DOV

4 + 4

L

606.9vE64
E00BWN%ZAZYZEID |
6L1IZELEVE
ZLLIZELEVE
€514ZELEVE
691.ZELEV6
¥G9L00LE
€Z0EWTLIOLESS
290L1d1ESN
SOELZZANLY
LEEEEZ0E90,
G96ZMLGOAL
60580190,
988109
ZE0S901.£90s
DG00V6158
YIE6Z0N
€9L¥)
9/885S6EZE
088SWOAIZP63
£9ZL¥El
LLTLVEL
9/2LLE}
umowyun
£000928€21
0200.€}

SivErEL
BuoN

SUON
506826¢
0.2826¢

ELYPYBEr

£5Z0E6EMM
Z15z205¢N8
19911516N8
ON Iviu3s

s ae R

1

+

JOAIBOTY 3_m5m>_ﬁ_ 0._:£m.. Ovmm_‘ PLEELN

1aWud |1 JemalAis aiddy| 8ozel | Z98ELN

J8juud snid G-V 1eu0ia) 15161 | 9Z8ELN|

J8juld Snid §2-v leubia) 06161 | SZBEIN

Jajuld snid G2-¥7 E_m_n_ 6¥161 | PZ8ELN

J191ulg snid §2-¥ _s_m_o ovL6l | 1Z8ELN]|

PIEZIM Emmmr 12161 | LLP0ED)

00€ A2 aiddv| 0016} | 69Y0EO|

I8)ulid 00G J18ryseq pieoed %_;oz £6061 | PIBEIN
8L 0L5-01 :oam+ 19681 | 89/EIN

1o\ulid 01G-D1UosdT| €p98L | LELEIN

Jeluld snid G-y 1eubia| 6¥6.) | SPOEIN

ajuld 015-01 ,_owmm+ 8/8/) | 2Z8SYIN

wapow aiddy| pLELL | 99GEIN]

19juld 0L6-D1U0sda| 27291 | SEVELN

h0>m_n_ B)8SsE)) 03PIA COm._oEw+ GZecl | vam_.z,
wepon aiddy | 199PL | ZOEEIN

NN %¥oeqheld v_mmcm_oz_. 6718 | SSZELN|

1B)ULd D Jejumysaqg piedoed zo_;o_._ VN | 088ZIN|
1eindwio) snid ﬁoE_oms_ €29S1 | Z98ZIN

Janiag iid x_cohﬁcm._+n¢mm_z+ 68109

JOAIBG Juild XIUONUET ZYBZIN | 88Y0ED

JaAI9g Julld XIUONUET | L¥BZIN | Z8YOED

jsjussald ensiAowId) YN 92/ZIN

1aAIag Juld 1auq 181 pieyoed ﬁm_;o_._ VN . 889ZIN
sandwod doyde uc;oeso 01651 6660LN

Janlag Juild xEEEm._,mmoEof 0LPOED

J9AJAG JUlid 1021 191 pIBYOR NOMOH | YN | 6LZ0ED
JBAIBG JUlld 1084 J8f paeyoed um_sm_._ YN | 8120€D
AS 3NLId 103) 1okeld 051 JeseT] JesuOld| 688/ . 0800€9D
%uEta&s%Eaﬁsgfggimgt 62009
..w»m_n_ 281 JeseT ._omco_n_ O_.mw_. T 8€00ED

AS INLIH 104) sekeid osiq Jase Emco_n_ 96€8L | Z100ED
BUL-INN $Z9-V1 omo_ z20081

SN 21 030 020081

NOILdIYDS3ad ONPIO ON DNIANN

(00°00G$ ueu} ss8 3502 Jun)
pauonony aq 0} wawdinbg uou__ﬂ_amo-coz
F93T10D HOINNT OJIX3IW >>mz.

4

640 | abed

—

e E——




jeuonouny
jeuonaun4
[euonoun
Teuonound
leuonoun 4
|EUOIIOUNJ-UON
[euojoung
[BUOlOUN4-UON
[euonouny
[euonouny
[euonound
[euonoung
Jeuonound
JEUOROUNS-UON
{euoRoun4-uoN
feuonoun4-uoN
[BUOROUN4-UON
jeuonouny
jeuonaund
[euUOIaUN4-UON
JEUOROUN4-UON
teuoyouny
[euopoung
|euonouny
|euonouny
[euonoung
[_UOI2UN
[BUOIIOUNS-UON
[euonoung
[euonoung
[euoyound
[BUOIIOUNJ-UON
[euonouny
Jeuoioun
JEUOROUN-UON
NOILIONOD

Too'6ry

| 06'v6e

| 56'662

[ 8v'z62
| 06°Zv2
[o09zz
[ 0002z
| 00'6€E1
| 00'ege
[ 00°0s¥
1 05'L8Y
| 00°09¢
| oz'oee
[ oo'2ve
| 00081
| 0008}

+

00°05}
66662
66'66C
00°'0vL
000V
6v'60Z

| 00662

51981

| sL981
| 00°€se
| 00°€ST
| oo'esz
| oo'ese
| oo'62E
| 00082
| 00’591
| 00"00¥
| o0zLe

P S e P . S

00°¥SE

$ |9861/1/Y
$ |966L/v/Ct
$ |9661/91/6
$ |9661/91/6
$ |9661/82/9
$ |9661/91/8
$ 9661/L11L
$ 066L/1/E
$ €861/L/E
$ 1861/1L/8
$ 186L/L/8
$ 186L/MIE
$ |9661/1/S
$ |9661/\1F
$ S66L/L/E
$ |5664/L/E
$ |5661/4/€
$ |566L/112)
$ S66L/LIT)
$ S661/L/0L
$ S661/1/01
$ S661/L/2)
$ S661/Li6
$ S661/L/8
$ S661/1L/8
$ S66L/L/Y
$ S66L/L1Y
$ S66L/L/1
$ 6617111
$ S661/L/L
$ [¥66L/1L/0L
$ ¥661/L/8
$ |v66L/1/8
$ |¥661/L/9

+ .+

+

4

$ [¥661/1/9

e

+

et —1-

+ -+

-+

4

+

4

1

+-

i

4

SN —

3aNTvVA DOV 31va OOV

260956 | uIno37 9|qeMod| Z6ZLS | 06FYIN
1981188998 | d X3 2IISL PIeNOed HOMOH | wmsmo YOrvIN
96YEVEL | 19MIBS Wlid XIUORUE Y1050 | LSPYLN]|
18YEVEL | JOAIBS Jild XIUORUET 1Z1L0SA | L¥bPLN]|
AM0J0Z9aT | anuq diz mmosorﬁoomo OFPrIN
6v600VEY | Jopjwsuel | suoydosip UOSWES 620054 | 9EVPLN
b1-0/0-06 | Jonssg uud 8Y105a | OLPPIN
(e Y AN 0:0:&0._0_5_ Japiodwed mwm_m.__>> ApeN | 9PELS | _‘o_vvrz.
0169952 9N | JOJUOW J0J0D you| €] JIUOSEUBY| 6605 | 96ZVIN
98gzizl ON AL 10[00 OlUoSBURd | £0205 | OVZYLN
8/ZLL0TQ |  19pI0d3y SP9sSeD YoUAS [BNSIA YESUSIOM | ¥¥LOS | ZZZPIN
6£8900M0V | AL 100D WOBYH| Z0L0S | 60ZVIN
98z.E€L ] 19M3S Jld XiuoAueT| §1022 | GBIVIN
NHOrLHI99S | d 0009 1oM1seQ PIeOBd WOIMEH | ¥86LZ |  Z8LYIN
usmouuN | auoydoIoIN 081-INZd UMOID| €591Z | ZELVIN
usmouun | auoydooIN 08L-WZd UMOID| ZS9LZ | LELVIN
umouun | ououdosIN 08L-WZd UMOID| 05912 | 62LYIN
885v8¢ | 9ALIQ PIEH (BWSIXI D O'b| ¥6VLZ | LOLYLN
905v8€ | 9AUQ PIeH (2WRX3 A9 0'L| €612 | 0OLYIN
66LE0P4EHY | ¥OABunsweg| giyiz | 680VIN
1291064849 | ¥OA Bunswes| Giviz | 980vIN
MBEISYSYVY | enuq diz eBowol 98e1Z | 18OVIN
Loaisessn | Jd 009 1918 PIBXOEd HOIMOH | 1624 | 8LOVIN
$8000040S. | 1eedey 1-0seqd 0} - HOd 8 OIAS| 88112 | LLOVIN
£80000£05. | jeadoy 1-0588 0L - MOd 8 O3NS, L8112 | 9L0¥IN
£5086€384) | 1euud 026-D1uosda| 52802 | LYOYIN
gvosse3sdl | 1euud 0/6-01uosda| p/80Z | OVOVIN]|
siseee3sdr | 1e)uud 026-07uosd3| 82202 | 6LS0ED
vOBEELE3BL | 19)Uld 06DV U0sdT| pJ0Z | GLSOED
alesdoosyvd | aeads ' WOY-QO lewaix3 aiddy| 69202 | PLSOED
6¥7V06 | oipey g WeysAS woossju| usbog 8660Z | 0B6EIN
890S010VH9 | ¥OABunswes| gyv0z | 996ELN|
8evol8e | IOJUOW/UOISIAIS). ou) GZ XOAUBEN | Zyb0Z | 096ELN
680VOPEVEID | 18juld |1 lemalfs aiddy| €910Z | 00S0ED
L9054rPrSn Jo)uLId 00 19SS PIEXOBd HOIMOH | Z7L0Z | 86VOED)|
ON TVI¥3S NOILI¥OS3A ONPIO  ON OTWN|

(00°005$ ueY s$9) 3502 Jun)
pauonony aq o} Juswdinbg va__E_amo :oz

3937102 HOINNI ODIX3IW >>m_Z.

6 Jo g abed

e p— L L T




| ] ] | | 21S0€12 | 10je[Noed JUNDBIT| 1868 |

i { | | 815902 | _ (pesn) Jojenojed GzoLdg uoued| 6812 |

i | I | 99/L) | | a|qe L, pmxmmxﬁ 9¥61 |
| : | v2/0) | | _ pueys Buidky >=mtﬁ 298L | ‘
[euonoung | 006y  $|SB6M/LC | T6IY0E0LYE | oAlIQ pJeH 1senbAg _mEQ___ S180Z | £ZOVIN|
[euonouny | 00'6¥C  $0002/92/6 |  0958v.209S | JaAIBG Juld J0aJICIer plesoed zo_am:+ VN | LI8GIN]
|euopoung-uoN | 96°6€L  $ |6661/L/9 | 66ETVVSYS | HOAUHPESH y VO] VN | 6.9SIN]
Jeuopoun4-uoN | 00'8Z¥  $ |666L/¥2/S | v8280€ | olpey 8|qeHod SOd 39, YN | 8SESIN|
Jeuonouny | 0082y $ 666b/¥2/S | 18601 | OlpEY 3GBHOd SOJ 3D VYN | 9SESIN
| [eucyouny 00’82y $ 6661/VTS | 108€0€ | OIPEY 9IQBHOd SOd 39| YN | GSEGIN
leuonound-uoN | 00’82y $ |BB6LIVZIS | zev60l | olpey 2qeHod SOd 39| YN | ¥SESIN|
] leuonoung 0082y  $ 66612/ | Z64€0€ | OIpeY B9BHOd SOd 3D, YN | E€GESIN|
[euonouny | 66662  $ |966L/9L/6 | 622152 | 85 juldjuudieyi eukea] YN | O/ZSIN]|
feuooung-uoN | 28'Lle  $ |866L/06/9 | LHZZIGESXW | leuueog pieyoRd WaMAH, YN | 142089
[euonoun4 | 00'¥8C  $ [866L/SHY | 1L2£0042 | 19MIBG Juld X|uonue | WN | Z0LSIN
[euonouny 1 00v8Z  $ 866L/SHY | S0P2042 | 13MIBG Julid Xuonue | WN | LOLSIN
leuonouny | 0068y $ 8661/SHY | £56096¥.38 | SAIQ H-QO PIRYOBRd WRIMeH, YN | ZLL0€D
Jeuonouny 1 00'¥82  $ 8661/0LE | 96059¢} | Jonseg jud XiuohuUel| WN | 2SOSIN
|euonouny . 00€8c  $| 866L/vEIE | | J9ABG JUld XuonueT] YN | €/6VIN|
[euonouny | 666Vl $ | 2661/SL/Cl | IHOPBEHIVY | anugdizebowol| WN | tvISIN
[UOROUN-UON | S0'29E  $ |866L/0E/L | 8550.€6 | oipey d|qepod :ommo:m YN | lE6VIN
leuopoung-uoN | - $ wmm:m Wb NASOPINGVY | aAuQ diz mmoso_ VN | 000SIN|
|eucnouny 10062 8 Em:mzﬁ | lEIZEIE19S | pJe) Joauqier piesoed %_sm_._* VN | 8/87IN]|
|euonouny 69962  $ 266L/L/LL | 1620022 | JOMI3S Julid Xiuonue]| YN | SkZPIN
Jeuonouny | 0026 $ |866L/SL/IL | 0065SEL | JOAIBG Juld Xiuonue]| WN | G/90€9
|euooung-UuoN | 66'6¥L  $ |Z66L/SL/0) |  898ETEOL-MOL YOAUOUO| YN | 8ELVIN
Jeuonouny | EPPIE S [266L/L/9 | ¥6.101 * olpey 9jqeMod4 UossOU3| YN | 9E9VIN
leuonouny | 000EE  $ 26615119 | SSOONMLQ | HOA 0§62-OV duoseued| YN | L09VIN|
leuonouny | L6°€€2  $ 266L/L/9 | LYEEVE _ Jenses uLd juudieyg eufea) YN | L6SPIN
[euonouny | - $ |06L/L6 | VN | lese3] /S | Z6SPIN
| leuopound [0 | 090v€ | wF¥9L0G0ZV ' JONUOW 010D ¢ | 28061  €8SPIN
leuonouny 1 00'8€  $ 966419 OvEZYY | 18MI9G JUlld 000 JUUDIBN| €022 | LSSOED
Jeuonouny P $ L66L/MY | 0p9Zr091 | axze prezim dreus| YN | 9890£9
[euoyouny |- $ Bm::ﬁ‘ | MJI06LOEIM | aAmuQ zep mmmso_ YN | 28v0£D
| leuonouny B MY suoN | oauQ Addoly fewalxg equysol OVSPIN|  €£9506D
NOILIONOD INIVA DOV 31vV3 DOV ON TVIN3S NOILdIMOS3A ONPIO ON OFNN

| ! (00°00G$ ey ss8j3s0d Jun) |
_psuopony eq 0} juswidinb3 pazjeyded-uoN| |
| | 3937709 HOINNI ODIXIW M3IN|

6 Jo ¢ abeyd




¥6/01

+———

4

+ +

4

+

+ ++

veiz) |

¥8/S

88/¢

A S

s

L9/6 |

89/1
69/11
99/01

-
+

-+

99/k1 |
99711 |

6v18
090-71010680193

¥805€01dd
098001

G6S01

0G650102

vrSE662
60¥1L2
S8rZL

L61ZLOES
v98.2Y

S9vieovn

- + + -+

N

4

A —ge—t

+—t—+

SPUEIS Al (2) oML |
laueog 1SI104 ._.

uepuedsg _..muu_ww.r

awdinba [eaipaw ‘2SI (Z) omL
wawdinba siuonoalg asIN AE Eom+

sued Y oSN (€1) uesiyl xo..mm.q,r
Y0 [PauMm (g) omL|
pieoq Aoy s300q Jomod -nmntm.som

seidepe ysip vc:oezo

Yo}MS Jajsuel ] Emo T
2IBM]JOS LSOJUIDEI PaMOSSY | T
] X0q POOM | T
J0J08ULI0D [ESIBAIUN X819 ._.+ T ,
Joydeys b:u AnBaH €11 o:__mc_z,m i
alemog el 2007 eiddy (9) x_m |
sde) 1omod 000E EEooE;on_ M
Jojejnoie? gLZdw :ocmo

SSaJjeW Weo} __mEm H
JoymadA | s_m_ 96502 |
suonuaxe ysap (Z) om .,. |
v_men_ v9802 |

SABMOIOIW || {9SN0LR) Em;w 25202
Jopeay SYOUOIN| 9¥8ZL +

efueiepey mcmE<

1endwod 17 00v1 ApueL| 9ziGh |
v_mwn_ 69 |
doyde gopi %Eﬁ 86251 |

Jysap Emum._omw I8EE
¥sea 058y |
v_mmn_ SIs9 |
a|qe} Ewnam azrL |
Jsep Emv:«w Sv0S |

ysap mcawov_v_oom 652
3s8Q mmxomxmw 952 H

Joje|nojes :o:mo | 10101

NOLLIANOD

ANTVA OOV

31v3 OOV

ON vi¥3s

+

+

+ -+ + 4

-

NOILJINOS3IA ONPIQ ON DFIN|

(00°00G$ uey) ssa| 3S00 Jun) |
pauonony aq 0} jJuawdinb3 paziepden-uoN

3931102 HOINNTI OJIXIW MIN

6 jo ¢ abegq




8|qe) buod buig

[ [ 1 B ~ winpa) do} 9igel [e1en | ]
| | | | spod-1) EmEED {2) om L ]
| I ] 1 - 9G0E # pow Ajjop 9:<+ |
i | | | | uoa-E uosweg| |
{ | | | muoa L} oluoseued (¥) inoJ| | |
[ | | | hmc__nci 98G. |
1 | i | Jayeads mc_u_om €6ZLS |
| | | | w9109y E_._c_E_.__< 42005 |
| | 08/} | | puejs o:ocho_S_ vyee |
| | 08/1 | | pues ococao._o_s_ €26 |
| | | | S00[0 [EDL}O9[E POSN JO seX0q (Z1) anam ._. |
| | | _ sjun uoied "osiW JO spajied (Z) om .r | ]
1 | 1 | ) _mmmm <006 |
| | | _ s1omelp )i} Aesb romeipz sies (g) saiy h |
| | ‘ _ spue)s ojod bey4 (z) om ._. 1
i | | _ olpes uue m_..E_EO |
dwnd a5euieiq onoway | ooEow
1 T | _ samoq uabAXQ) [jews auQ ‘Pan m:O I
| I | “ 109 Usa.6 WnuIN)Y/| |
| | | | YD 19MOUS xm_s_n |
| I | | Jsuuds agnj }sa _. |
! | | | 0009A PJENS UBA- |19 cQ__Em_._ |
| | ‘ | ajeog mN:o_mn_ |
| I 1912 | | E&m>m Buluen ._mo_o:z Sv8z |
m_mmcE>w _._ommaw
f w H “ siaxeys enedig eevueA (2) om ._. H
] | S0£00.096 i 1oxIN ol anbojoid E:cw |
_ | 0LV1 | | J8pns Buign) mmm_w (4%
192 waysAs bBuiues hmm_o:z S$8Z
” M “f H s900ld e|dnINI- Juewdinb3 uonoe) ._. H
suy E__._coc:m_z ¥do ) ..:ou
| — -+ + >Dmm +

Joje|nuIS uoneZIReYes alewad(y) Eou
S I dwnd Emoﬁ_._

NOILIONOD  2NIVA DOV 3Lvd OOV ON Vi3S NOILJi¥0S3d ON PO ON 3TN
(00°005$ vey sss} 1502 Hun)

+ T+ + - Rl
psuoiony aq o) awdinbg vmu__ﬁamo-:oz

+ - + + +

3931100 HOINNF ODIX3W >>m_z

- - - -

i

610 g abed

e




SI8UuUNI JIES (Z) oML

i I I T Buibps pue Buapoyy wo__2+ | ]
I H | H J3ys1Ba. yseo diey H 6¥9rL H
| | . ! sejund /m BuIyOEW JaAcOsI| 1
1 I BL/E | 680tLL { B_aﬂm oUo919 u:__mc_z,m Ly98 |
9198 $19]101 UO JaUIGED omn_>
| [ 69/5 | B | uopeysom Jayndwon | Gzvsl |
I | £9/8 | | %sep [ejow doj POOM| GGEE | |
| | | | SHOUS |eJoW/M %OB) pIed uoo>> | |
| | | | )oel pieo uzmm_n_ |
I | 1 | winjoe} doy m_n_mu _EOS_ L) |
| | | | dot a1qe1 cm_uoo?; |
I | 99/04 | | ~ BIgE}IuepMS| 0Zvl |
| | ] | a|qe} buipjoj o>_sooxm LwBLL |
81/6 Lomc_._o cw:amam
‘ | | 19825 | JaysinBunxe a4 _m._ocmo T
H + H ¥6028. i JaysinBuixa a4 _:mc,q +

._m_a:oo ansnody pasdsybiy || 19idnooaja] (Z) om ._.
dey sjamod ‘dwey 18jua) pUBLILIOD w_tso

4 1 + + +

3IBM)JOS YSOJUIOB} 10} (°'Z UOISIBA

+ + + wau} — + +

-

‘ | | 00°'G00ZOEY 110086 | eulyoeW Bupamsue sul Z sfewLUOUd | ]

| [ 06/8 682250L#8D0 | RWMPBGET| VEIIL |

| | | 099Z821i63 | mpgeT| ]

| 28/L | 6992 | MBIA :o;m:_s_mm,q 2616 |

| | 8L6L10L | aulyoewWw X o>oo 1

1 | | ¥8600L0€ [ Japeal woy-ao OIN| |
¥1L801LZE 19pI02al YoA asde s ._.

“ ” H | sauoyd pes Jo Sjes (zZ)omLAusm ._. ]

[ | | 58lz0L0759 | AL .E) UOSISWT| |

_ | G6/S | SOv1L00.L | AL.EL DAF| 56802 |
v_wwu Jendwioo plepIaqgny (s1) cmou_..._

| | 18/0} | | pueys uawdinbe axoreq| 87205 |

| | 89/9 | | 91GEL OEX09X0E (2) OML]| ¥L05 |

| ] 29| i suoRW YeIq| 988Y |
9o/} | uay jeaum ewau) (g) seayL |

NGILIONOD ANTYA OOV JLvd DOV ONIVIY3S NOILdI¥OS3d ONPIO ON OriIN

(00'005$ uey) ssa3| }s00 Jun)
pauoRony aq o} EoEn__:_um_ pezienden- coz

3937102 YOINNT OIXIN MIN| _

6 10 g efeyd

o camas



WNNJeA yue | bobm__s £C66
$100p g 18320 [ejowl .m

T T T I S[aUM/M OBl mc_wam_z+ T 1
T T | T spaym/m siabuey el (Z)om ._. T
I i ) siesuadsip enssy |1oJ oquinr (91) comﬂx_m I
u | H 10sUdsIp [BMO} 1101 (€3O | H
. S$8110SSB008 WNNJBA X0g |
[ 1 | I sbeq wnnoep "posse sexoq () om ._,+ T
_ I I sajpuey dow () ._:om T
[ I i 10buim aoE T
I 1 [ I sjayong dow Em_m T
| T T T sueo yse jejew (g) sa1y | T
T 1 T [ 1885 youaq o | T
i | welov|  ls5e88 WnnoeA | ZES0Z |
 wei0L | 19GE8S I wnnoeA| £v50Z |
| | | Z16ll | labreyg bﬁ_mm_ |
| | eovziom preoghox/m adoosoeq 1eWBIQ] ¥01L0L
| | £800vEOM3 “ waysAs uojjosfosd sojoo o_:owm:mn_ |
| | | * AS9p (IS
qS8D POOM
| I | 1ezevovaoas | 3UIYDEW Xe Jluoseued |
* i | 00°€0£00v02004Z | J9lUd 0¥E8dQ JB1S | 1
SYEIELZ 10)ejnonjes odisen |
| | Zz000208 | 10151604 ysed ekoy | |
| | | 610€ 3Sep |2} |
| | | + sajeb el (v) ..:om |
| i | | . saJnx1y Wb . () oeﬁ |
| I [ eoor0z | 10)e|nofeo 91qang | 086661 |
| | ! 0¥880. 1 Lo&m_ze_mu _._OCNO S¥801 |
L | i 059192H | 101B|NDIeD OGZdN cocmO |
_ [ 1261 { iopeinojeo dieys| pryiz |
| | 08/9 | £es10ee | J0je|nanjed oo_wmu €9¥6 |
[ | 98/9 |  zZLL00LS | sopeinojed dieus| GLevl |
il [ | 18L0ELC | . Jojenanied oo_wmo 8.8 |
| | _ seunpy 1481 3 (Z) omL |
NOILLIGNOD INIVA OOV JLvG DOV ON TVId3s NOILdid9s3a ©N PIO Oz OrAIN
| | i | (00°006$ uey ssa| 1809 yun) | |
| | [ | pauonony aq 0} uawdinb3 pazjeyded-uoN|

9377100 HOINN ODXINW >>m_z_

6 {0 / abed




A

quiel J00p _Ems_
$100p uspoom osiw (g 1) ussply ._.
3990164 mes 0l E_xms_ 06691
MES UBLLSYRID Emmw 6EY.
a|qey [elaw alenbs m?m._ 1125
PUBJS/M JOpULO poy g den cmcczm
soddns m:o:am_o 1 om_s_
1opeas aduysbew Jo/pue aposseq 00F-S| Sd ._.
0EPFPIEIH wayshs Builage) yono -4 hosem_
salddns esawes _S_m_v om_s_
21EM}OS YSOjUIDe om_s_
$91108S9928 ¥00q Jamod pue Jondwod um_s_
Z860ES Il 481npQg _msn_
519)3W NUOoLJIT ?: :mmt:on_
jw Buyjos ._ox_s_-hm__:s_ gc0¥
84/9 | | paq [eidsoH woy ____._ 9058
sia)ewoiq () ._son_
moaoomo___omo (€1) usapuy l_.
| Jawdinbe uoljeduNWWOD 3|qe) _mmmm
89/11 | S68LL _ 8|qeL -um.r 6625

i | 9L/G | 2062001 | 180811 OARD| L)/
s|auuny o1Wel9d xoq (1) suQ

+ +

L

et
+
1
i

4

]

L

o+ 4
+ o+ o+

+
g1t
1

+
1
| 19EL1
1

-t
+

4
+
T
-+
4

- + + 4

659vZ 1 wg)sAs suoydoionu ssajenm opsieay|
[ | “ 1 Aiddns somod JyureaH (r) L:on_
04/0} | dde Kioay | onouny| zz9
049 | OAWS09Z JoyoweliN| 88¥9
99/6 | Jajeuw INHO oA uosduns(z) oE 295
] WALA OV - vOH (€) oeﬁ
8L | 990€02 nownq owod13| 96¢8
sisjuminiy (€) mmz.r I |
wnnoea umiadie) S0UBADY |
sBalm osea co_,mEomEn_ 2805
2.nseJ3 ou1o8|3 Jewied(z) om ._. Z6LLY
BuUIYIBW 100|4 Ew.."v_o:__.._\,rr ¥LZ

wnnoeA yue) Agnem 8666 o

1
-+
+

.
+
.

| 656.¥
28/6 |
£8/E | 09€Z}
9%/€ | 600022

4
1
S W mn S

4

NOILIONOD  3NTVA DOV 31vd OOV ON Tvid3s NOILAEOS3a ONPIO ON IFAIN
(00°005$ uey $$31 1509 HuN)
pauonony aq o} jJuswdinbg pazyepden- coz

3931102 HOINNF ODIXIN M3IN|

6 jJo g abed




i
f———t

1
-

NOILIINOD

3NTvA DOV, 31va 0OV

592980118

rALOSL0889S

859196

dy g'¢ Jebpa seb uoneng g mm.m_._m
Jomouwl cm_.a ESS_
Jamoiq mod ojog|
1ebpa ssel9 |
SWNNOBA |leYSIEN ¢|

J8|es aE:n_+ €61dd 1
dn oeq Aiepeq oav,
sed $Zv _S.m_n_
pleoq m:_zzo
syund D669 191 Xseq m:
0S'@XEZ SWU pue sail| z|
X 8l |lem sexoq oﬁ
CLXZ| 8l 00y} 1 DA sax%0q 2|
lojeiablyal Jowuay| goegt
SU9}09) BIqeLOd Z|
SPED /SPUB)S OsIW |1Z]
yuied ‘osiw ‘g6 (1) £/1
wawdinba opes Aem Z “osiw xog|
se|l} "2siW oed F
yuied asiw sj@yong 1eb 5 (g)) :ooEm_w
sjauiqed abelo)s osiw ¢
sa|qe} mcEEn_ N
BUIYDBL 9SI0I0Xa mm._
SABMOJOI Uon |
}S8p JUBPN)S "OSIW ZG|
slieys "osIwW /6
SJUNOW/M SJIBYD g5
Jeyo jeayp |
p1eog yoeig|

+ +

ot
-

1
+

't
-+

13 {

+o
+ +

+
+

ON TvI¥3s

NOILdI¥OS3d ON PIO  ON JFIN
(00°005$ Ueys ssej 1500 Jun)
pauoiony aq o) EmEn__..cm umn__ﬁ_amo-coz
3937109 HOINN ODIX3NW >>mz.

6 0 6 sbey




LLLE L A R 1.4 L.

Nov-2i-02

JUDIBDILYS

11:44 From-Mel inda Hughes Lea County Clerk

v.ouz R=4¥) Job-33U
5053263283 T-274 P.002/002

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE DISTRICT ELECTION

December 20, 2002

January 2, 2003

January 15, 2003

January 28, 2003

January 28, 2003

February 4, 2003

Feb. 7, 2003 through
Feb. 28, 2003

Feb. 20 & Feb. 27, 2003
February 28, 2003
March 4, 2003

March 6 or 7, 2003
March 13, 2003

March 10, 2003

March 4, 2003

21-13-18.1

1-22-4

21-13-18.2A

1-22-9

21-13-18.2D

1-4-8

1-22-19

1-22-11

1-11-11

1-22-15
1-22-15

1-4-8

Board must file Resolution calling
election with County Cleark.

Publication of Resolution.

Filing day for candidates 9 a.m.- 5 p.m.

with County Clerk.

Deadiine for withdrawal of candidacy
ats p.m.

Deadline for write-in candidates
5 p.m. with County Clerk.

Close voter registration.

Absentee voting in the County Clerk's
office.

Publish election proclamation.
Voting machines delivered.
ELECTION DAY

Canvass election.

Publish election results.

Voter registration re-opens.

F-6Z1




RESOLUTION

NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE BOARD ELECTION TO BE HELD IN
FOUR OF THE SEVEN VOTING DISTRICTS
LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
TUESDAY, MARCH 4, 2003
7:00 AM. TO 7:00 P.M.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a New Mexico Junior College Board election shall be held in four of the
seven voting districts, Lea County, New Mexico, on Tuesday, the 4th day of March, 2003 at which time there shall be
submitted for vote to the qualified, registered elector of the District, the following matter:

The term of office for four board positions on the New Mexico Junior College Board shall expire on April
1, 2003. It is necessary that an election take place to fill these positions. The term of office for Districts 1, 3, and
6 Board members is six years. The term of office for District 4 Board member is two years.

The polls for said election will be opened at 7:00 a.m. on the day of said election and will be closed at 7:00 p.m.
Precincts shall be consolidated for this election. The polling place for the consclidated precincts (such polling ptace being
located within the consolidated precinct) is as follows:

ELECTION PRECINCTS

DISTRICT NO. CONSOLIDATED POLLING PLACES
| Lea County Precincts Tatum Schooels Auditorium
2,3,10,13,21,26 and Corner of 3™ & B Street
that portion of 14 West of Tatum, New Mexico
Seventeenth Street and
the portion West of

Thirteenth Street between
Jefferson and Avenue D.

] Lea County Precincts New Mexico Junior College
18,20,22,23,28 5317 Lovington Highway
Hobbs, New Mexico
v Lea County Precincts Sanger Elementary School
24,25,30,31,32,34 61 2020 North Adobe
Hobbs, New Mexico
Vi Lea County Precincts John J. Fletcher Center
35,43,51,52,55 and 1000 East Snyder
that portion of 53 South Hobbs, New Mexico

of Marland and North of
Texas between Elm Street
and Dal Paso.

A map of the districts is available for inspection at the President’'s Office, New Mexico Junior College or in the office
of the County Clerk.

Each voter shall cast his or her ballot in the precinct and district for which he or she resides and is currently
registered and for the candidate of that district.

Residents of the New Mexico Junior College District living in the above districts who are




T e e ————obleld . LT T — T Y S T T

quaiified electors of the State of New Mexico, shall be eligible to become a candidate to serve as a member of the
New Mexico Junior College Board and shall file a declaration of candidacy on the form prescribed by law for the
district in which they reside with the County Clerk of Lea County, Lea County Courthouse, Lovington, New Mexico
on the 48th day before the election, January 15, 2003, commencing at 9:00 a.m. and ending at 5:00 p.m. on the
same day.

No ballot on the Board Member election shall be received by any polling place board unless the person
offering to vote is a registered, qualified elector of the District.

Residents of the New Mexico Junior College District who are qualified electors of the State of New Mexico
and residents of the district for which they desire to become write-in candidate as a member of the New Mexico
Junior College Board shall file a declaration of intent to be a write-in candidate on the form prescribed by law with
the County Clerk of Lea County, Lea County Courthouse, Lovington, New Mexico, before 5:00 p.m. on the 35th
day before the election, January 28, 2003.

The registration books of Lea County shall be closed by the County Clerk at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, February
4, 2003. Any person otherwise eligible to vote as a qualified elector and not currently registered, may register
prior to such time at the city clerk's office or in the office of the County Clerk.

Voting machines shall be used for this Board Member election.

Absentee voting shall be at the Office of the County Clerk, Lea County Courthouse, Lovington, New Mexico
during the regular hours and days of business beginning at 8:00 a.m. on Friday, February 7, 2003, and ending at
5:00 p.m. on Friday, February 28, 2003. Absentee ballots can be obtained from the Office of the County Clerk,
Lea County, New Mexico.

Any information concerning absentee ballots, polling places, or any other matters relating to the election can
be obtained from the Office of the County Clerk, Lea County, New Mexico.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the New Mexico Junior College Board of the New Mexico Junior College
District, Lea County, New Mexico has caused this notice to be published as required by law and dated this 19th
day of December, 2002.

CHAIRMAN

ATTEST: W
SECRETARY y
Goar S




RESOLUCION

ELECCION DE LA MESA DIRECTIVA DE NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
SERA SOSTENIDA EN CUATRO DE LOS SIETE DISTRITOS VOTANTES
CONDADO DE LEA, NUEVO MEXICO
MARTES, 4 DE MARZO, 2003
7:00 A.M. A LAS 7:00 P.M.

NOTICIA PUBLICA por este medio esta dando que una eleccion de la Mesa Directiva de New Mexico
Junior College estara sostenida en cuatro de los siete distritos votantes del Condado de Lea, Nuevo Mexico, el
martes, el dia 4 de marzo, 2003, en el cual sera sometido para voto a los electores calificados y registrados en el
Distrito, de la siguiente manera:

El termino oficial para cuatro posiciones en la Mesa Directiva de New Mexico Junior College
expiraran el dia 1 de abril, 2003. Es necesario que dicha eleccion de lleve a efecto para ocupar esta
posiciones como describido mas adelante. El termino para los posiciones de la Mesa Directiva para
Distritos 1, 3 y 6 sera sies anos. El termino para Distrito 4 sera dos anos.

La lugares de votacion para esta eleccion seran abiertos a las 7:00 a.m. el dia de eleccion seran

cerrados a las 7:00 p.m. El numbero de Distrito para cada consolidato y los lugares de votacion para cada
precinto consolidado seran como sigue:

PRECINTOS DE ELECCION

DISTRICT NO. CONSOLIDADO LUGARES de VOTACION
| Precintos del Condado de Lea Tatum Schools Auditorium
2,3,10,13,21,26 y un porcion Rincon de Tres y B Calles
de 14 oeste de Calle Diecisiete Tatum, Nuevo Mexico

y un porcion oeste Calle Trece
entre Jefferson y Avenida D.

n Precintos del Condado de Lea New Mexico Junior College
18,20,22,23,28 5317 Lovington Camino
Hobbs, Nuevo Mexico
37 Precintos del Condado de Lea Sanger Elementary School
24,25,30,31,32,34,61 2020 Norte Adobe
Hobbs, Nuevo Mexico
Vi Precintos del Condado de Lea John J. Fletcher Centro
35,43,51,52,55 y un porcion de 53 1000 Este Snyder
sur de Marland y norte de Texas Hobbs, Nuevo Mexico

Calle entre EIm y Dal Paso Calles.

Un mapa del Distritos es disponible por inspeccion a la oficina de la Presidente, New Mexico Junior College o la
oficina de |la Escribana del Condado.

Cada votante echara su boleta en el lugar de votar en el distrito electoral consolidado donde reside y donde
esta registrado y por el ¢candidato de ese Distrito.

Residentes del Distrito de New Mexico Junior College que vivan en el Distritos 1, 3, 4 y 6 que sean
electores calificados en el estado de Nueve Mexico seran elegibles para ser candidatos para servir como
miembros de la Mesa Directiva de New Mexico Junior College y tendran que entregar una declaracion de
candidacion en la forma prescrita por ley para el distrito de residente con el Escribana del Condado de Lea, Casa
de Corte del Condado de Lea, Lovington, Nuevo Mexico en el 48 dia antes de la eleccion, el dia 15 de enero,
2003, comenzando a las 9:00 a.m. y terminando a las 5:00 p.m. del mismo dia. Para entregar una declaracion de
candidacion, cada elector calificado sera registrado y vivera en el Distrio de ellos.

Ninguna boleta en la eleccion del miembro de la Mesa Directiva sera recibida por ninguna mesa del distrito
electoral a menos que la persona que ofrece votar sea elector registrado y calificado del distrito.

Residentes del distrito de New Mexico Junior College que vivan en el distritos 1, 3, 4 y 6 del estado de
Nuevo Mexico y residentes de la distrito para que ellos deseen ser candidatos por insercion escrita como
miembro de la Mesa Directiva de New Mexico Junior Coltege deben presentar de la manera reglamentada una
declaracion de intento para ser candidato por insercion escrita en la forma prescrita por ley con el Escribana del
Condado de Lea, Casa de Corte del Condado de Lea, Lovington, Nuevo Mexico antes de las 5:00 p.m. en el 35
dia antes de la eleccion, el dia 28 de enero, 2003. Para entregar una declaracion de intento para ser candidato
por inserecion escrita, cada elector calificado sera registrado y vivera Distrito de ellos.

Los libros de registro de! Condadoe de Lea seran cerrados por la Escribana del Condado a las 5:00 p.m. en el
martes, el dia 4 de febrero, 2003. Cualquier persona elegible para votar como elector calificado en distritos 1, 3,



4 y 6 y no registrado actualmente, puede registrarse antes del tiempo dicho en la oficina de la Escribana del
Condado, Casa de Corte del Condado de Lea, Lovingten, Nuevo Mexico o en cualquiera oficina de un Escribana
del Cuidad.

Maquinas de votar seran usadas para la eleccion de los Miembros de la Mesa Directiva.

Todos los que votan en aucencia en el Distrito Numeros 1, 3, 4 y 6 votaran en la oficina de la Escribana del
Condado, Casa de Corte del Condado de Lea, Lovington, Nuevo Mexico, durante las horas regulares de negocio
comenzando a las 8:00 a.m. el viernes, dia 7 de febrero, 2003 y terminando a las 5:00 p.m. el viernes, dia 28 de
febrero, 2003. Boletas de ausencia se podran cojer de la oficina de la Escribana del Condado, Casa de Corte del
Condado de Lea, Lovington, Nuevo Mexico.

Cualquier informacion concerniente a las boletas de ausencia, lugares de yotacion o cualquier
otro asunto relacionado con la eleccion puede ser obtenida en la oficina de la Escribana del
Condado de Lea, Lovington, New Mexico.
EN TESTIMONIO DE LO CUAL, la Mesa Directiva de New Mexico Junior College, Distrito de New Mexico

Junior College, en el Condado de Lea, Nuevo Mexico, ha causado que esta noticia sea publicada como se
requiere por ley y con fecha dia 19 de diciembre, 2002.

Presidente

Testigo: W

Secretaria



NEW MEXICO JUNIOR COLLEGE
Personnel Recommendation for Board Consideration

The following candidate is being recommended for employment as follows: Date. 12-5-02

Candidate’s name. Kenneth B. Brown

Position title Professor of Theatre/Scenic Designer/Technical Director

D New position & Existing position Classification @ Faculty O Professional Q Other,

Is candidate related to another NMJC employee? O yes @ no If so, 1o whom

Effective date of employment__January 7, 2003 Standard contract length Q 12 mos. B 9 mos. ( other.

Funding source_ NMJC Operating Budget - Performing Arts-Music & Performing Arts-Theatre

Paid advertising beyond *standard__Artsearch, Chronicle of Higher Education and USITT
{* Standard: The Hobbs Nows-Sum, Direct Mail to sprroximetcly 51 coliogos & 8 S-state region, NM Depe. of Laboe, NMIC Webeitn, KLMA Radic & Lakback TX Warkforcs Devaloprumt Wabsite)

Posted salary range Per Faculty Salary Recommended annual salary _$41.5 00,00 Prorated salary Elyes Clno
Schedule (Employment dale throigh

Account number(s) with respective % allocation(s) _2-2011-23-260 502 2-2011=-23-261 50%

REEL— g b
M‘V&L,ﬂ Elervane Sl Xh‘déo;//

Vice President

Selection Committee Members: Ch ubank

Ronnie Gray

Greg Hammond

John Rice

Comments: Mr. Brown meets and/or exceeds the minimum requirements for the position.

v, 63501




ABBREVIATED RESUME

Position

Professor of Theatre/Scenic Designer/Technical Director

Personal Data

Name: Kenneth B. Brown

Education

B.S., Eastern New Mexico University, Portales, NM, 1966
M.A., University of Arkansas, Fayetteville, AR, 1968
M.F.A., University of Missouri, Kansas City, MO, 1988

Professional Experience

Theatre Ensemble Arts, Farmington, NM
Scene Designer/Technical Director

Claudine’s Real Estate, Farmington, NM
Sales Associate/Office Aide

San Juan College, Farmington, NM
Part-time Adjunct Professor

Northwest Shiprock High School, Shiprock, NM
Teacher

Broad Horizons Educational Center, Portales, NM
Language Arts Instructor

Interlochen Arts Academy, Interlochen, MI
Instructor, Scenic Designer/Technical Director

John Carroll University, Cleveland, OH
Assistant Professor, Scenic Designer/Technical Director

Morehead State University, Morehead, KY

Assistant Professor, Interim Scenic Designer

Organizations/Awards
ACTF Best Lighting Design, 1980

9/99 to Present

4/00 to 9/02

9/97 to 6/99

1994 to 1996

1993 to 1994

1990 to 1991

1989 to 1990

1986




New Mexieo Junior Eoliege

Eareer Opportunities

Position Announcement - June, 2002

Positlon Title: Professor of Theatre/Scenic Designer/Technical Director

Positon Descrintion: The Professor of Theatre/Scenic Designer/Technical Director reports to the Dean of Arts
and Sciences. Duties and responsibilities shall be, but are not limited to, the following: (1) teach up to three
courses per fall and per spring semesters (day and/or evening/s), as enrollment requires, in Scenic Design, Stagecraft,
Technical Production, and Introduction to Theatre; (2) design and mount settings and lighting for four main stage
productions per academic year; (3) supervise student technical crews for four main stage productions per academic
year; (4) serve as community liaison (technical consultations) for NMJC’s Watson Theater; (5) serve on college
committees as assigned; (6) serve as an advisor to assigned students; (7) post and maintain approved office hours
per week; (8) attend orientation meetings and other in-service meetings/workshops, as scheduled; (9) maintain
accurate student records; {10) involve oneself in the general recruitment of students for the institution and music/
theatre programs; {11) assume other professional responsibilities associated with the position of professor/scenic
designer/technical director; and (12) nothing contained herein shall limit the president in assigning the employee
to any of the various college activities for which he/she would be qualified, in order to meet the needs of New
Mexico Junior College.

Qualifications: A Bachelor’s degree in Technical Theatre from a regionally accredited institution required, MA
or MFA preferred. Successful college-level designing/teaching/work experience is desired. Must be committed
to excellence in instruction/design/construction and willing to work with other full-time divisional instructors

and staff. NOTE: Computer proficiency is required.

Salary/Benefits: Salary is based on the NMJC faculty salary schedule and is commensurate with education and
experience for a nine month position. The successful candidate may have the option of teaching during the
Summier [ and I terms. Standard NMIJC benefits apply. NOTE: NMJC does not participate in social security
deductions.

Application Beadline: October 16, 2002, 5:00 p.m. MDT. Interviews will be conducted by a selection committee
and will commence upon receipt of completed applications by qualified applicants. To ensure consideration, all
application materials must be received by the deadline. Please do not send any application materials via e-mail.

ToRpply: Submit NMJC application form, letter of application, resume, unofficial transcripts (official transcripts
required prior to employment), and three or more letters of reference to:

Lisa Brewn
Diroctsr of Human Ressurces
Now Mexice Junior Celloge
9317 Levingten Highway
Hobbs, NM 88240

New Mexico Junior College is an Equal Opportunity, Affirmative Action Employer and does not discriminate against any applicant for

employment because of race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability, or veteran status. Qualified applicants are encouraged to apply.
"Equal Oppertunity Edusstion and
5317 Lovington Highway, Hobbs, NM, 88240 » Phone: (505) 392-5229 » Fax: (505) 392-3589 * Toll Free: 1-300-657-6260 « E-mail: lbrown@nmjc.cc.nm.us




APPLICANT LIST

Position: Professor of Theatre/Scenic Designer/Technical Director

Applicant

Yeatman, John
Parboosingh, Adam
Holen, Richard

Brown, Kenneth

Interview

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Offer Remarks

No

No Incomplete application materials.

Yes Declined offer and withdrew application.
Yes Start date: pending Board approval.

Page 1




